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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007
Compared with the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

Management's discussion and analysis covers consolidated financial statements that are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).
Cenain discussions regarding future events contained in this section reflect management's judgments
as of March 31, 2007, the balance sheet date of the year under review.

NEC Electronics Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (“NEC Electronics,” “we,” “our,” or
“us”™) are leading integrated providers of system-levet semiconductor solutions for electronic products

and systems across a variety of key markets in the communications, computing and peripherais,
consumer electronics, and automotive and industrial sectors. NEC Electronics Corporation (“the
Company”) began semiconductor business operations in 1956, and our cumulative expertise and
technical capahilities allow us to offer our customers a broad array of solutions, ranging from general
purpose semiconductors to custom semiconductors.

The Company was established on November 1, 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of NEC
Corporation (“NEC”), the result of a separation by new incorporation (shinsetsu bunkatsu} under the
corporate separation (kaisha bunkatsu) provisions of the former Japanese Commercial Code.

Pursuant to NEC’s separation plan, substantially all of NEC's semiconductor business operations
and related assets and liabilities, excluding those related to the general-purpose DRAM business,
were transferred to the Company, at historical cost, in exchange for the issuance to NEC of
100,000,000 shares. At the time of the Company's initial public offering on July 24, 2003, the Com-
pany issued 23,500,000 shares and NEC sold 10,500,000 shares. NEC also sold an additional
3,000,000 shares In connection with such initial public offering. As a result, and as of March 31,
2007, NEC beneficially owns 70.04% of the Company's issued shares, including 5.02% of shares
placed in the retirement benefit trust.

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported value of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period presented. NEC Electronics evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis, and bases those estimates and assumptions on histerical experience and on I
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable at the time the estimates and assumptions
are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions,

The Company believes when the following significant accounting policies are used, our estimates
and assumptions could have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements:
Allowance for Doubtful Notes and Accounts
NEC Electronics provides an allowance for doubtful notes and accounts based on the historical write-
off ratio for receivables and any specific doubtfu! notes and accounts based on a case-by-case
determination of collectibility. On the basis of information currently available, we consider the
allowance for doubtful notes and accounts to be adequate. However, changes in the underlying
financial condition of our customers, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, may
require additional provisions to this allowance.
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Inventories

NEC Electronics analyzes all inventories, including siow-moving and obsolete inventory, and writes
down such inventories to their estimated market value based on assumptions about future demand
and market conditions.

If future demand and market conditions are less favorable than those projected, additional inventory
write-downs may be required.

{investments

NEC Electronics holds investments with a long-range perspective to enhance partnerships with respect
to such purposes as reinforcing sales framework, joint development, and technical collaboration.
These investments consist of marketable equity securities, and the stock of companies that are not
publicly traded for which fair values are practically difficult to reasonably estimate. Marketable equity
securities and nonpublic companies’ stocks are included in marketable securities and investments,
other and stated at fair value and at cost, respectively.

When a decline in the value of investments is deemed to be otherthan-temporary, NEC Electronics
recognizes an impairment loss to the extent of the decline. In determining if and when such a decline
in value is other-thantemporary, we evaluate market conditions, trends of earnings, significance of
the decline, the duration of the decline, and other key measures. There were no significant gross
unrealized holding losses in marketable securities as of March 31, 2007. The Company also believes
that there is no impairment in investments, other as of March 31, 2007.

Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results by the companies in which
we have invested could result in losses, or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments
that is not reflected in the current carrying value of an investment, possibly requiring an impairment
charge in the future,

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used, including license fees and other intangibles, are evaluated for
impairment using an estimate of undiscounted cash flows whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If the estimate of
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment l0ss is
recorded based on the fair value of the assets.

Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sales are evaluated at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell.

We believe that there were no long-lived assets that required the recording of an impairment ioss at
March 31, 2007. Changes in future technology trends or strategy may cause an impairment of long-
lived assets.

Deferred Tax Assets

NEC Electronics has recorded deferred tax assets resulting from deductible temporary differences
and net operating loss carry-forwards, both of which will reduce taxable income in the future. We set
up a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that is more fikely than not to
be realized.
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We evaluate the necessity of a valuation allowance for each company based on the information
currently available, such as historical income performance, estimates of future taxable income, and
estimates of the timing of when temporary differences will reverse. As a result, based on estimates of
the levels of future taxable income and other factors carried out at NEC Electronics Corporation and
its consolidated subsidiaries in Japan, we recorded a valuation allowance of ¥95.5 billion ($809
million) at March 31, 2007.

Penslon and Severance Plans

NEC Electronics recorded pension and severance costs and fiabilities that are calculated from
actuarial valuations. Changes in the related pension and severance costs and liabilities may occur in
the future due to changes in assumptions such as the discount rate, the rate of increase in future
compensation leve! and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, in addition to changes in
the number of employees covered. Assumptions are evaluated at least annually; if circumstances
change we change these assumptions. We amortize variations in the assumptions or actual results
that differ from the assumptions over the average remaining service period of employees.

NEC Electronics applied 2.5% for the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007. To determine the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets, we consider current and expected asset allocations, as well as historical and expected long-
term rates of return on various categories of plan assets.

The assumed discount rate as of March 31, 2007 was 2.5%.

Contingent Liabllities

NEC Electronics is a defendant in several lawsuits and other litigation in which compensation for dam-
ages is being sought. At present, we have booked allowances to cover losses associated with these
actions in such cases where these losses are reasonably estimable. Currently, no allowances have
been made with respect to cases in which such losses cannot be reasonably estimated.

Net Sales
Net sales increased ¥46.3 billion, or 7.2%, to ¥692.3 billion ($5,867 million) for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007, compared to net sales of ¥646.0 billion for the previous fiscal year, due to higher

sales in our core semiconductor business, which increased ¥40.6 billion, or 6.6%, to ¥659.7 billion
{$5,591 million).

Our net sales by market application were as follows:
Communications
Net sales of semiconductors for communications applications decreased ¥8.4 billion, or 7.7%, to
¥99.6 billion ($844 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥108.0 billion for the
previous fiscal year. While sales of LCD driver ICs in particular increased, this growth was offset by a
large year-on-year fall in sales of system memory for mobile phones, among other factors.
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Computing and Peripherals
Net sales of semiconductors for computing and peripherals applications decreased ¥2.9 billion, or
2.3%, to ¥123.7 billion {$1,048 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥126.6
billion for the previous fiscal year. This decline largely reflected a sharp drop in sales of semiconduc-
tors for PC peripherals due to a fall in sales of semiconductors for printers and recordable DVD drives.
Consumer Electronics
Net sales of semiconductors for consumer electronics applications increased ¥18.1 billion, or 17.7%,
to ¥120.8 hillion ($1,023 million} for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥102.6 billion for
the previous fiscal year. This result was mainly due to a significant year-on-year increase in sales of
semiconductors for game consoles.
Automotive and Industrial
Net sales of semiconductors for automotive and industrial applications increased ¥2.3 billion, or
2.2%. to ¥106.1 billion {$899 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥103.8 billion
for the previous fiscal year. Sales of automotive semiconductors increased compared to the previous
fiscal year as mare semiconductors are used in vehicles due to the greater application of electronics
in cars.
Muiti-market ICs
Net sales of multi-market ICs increased ¥19.5 billion, or 28.1%, to ¥89.0 billion ($754 million) for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥69.4 billion for the previous fiscal year. The growth largely
reflected substantially higher sales of general-purpose microcontrollers year on year.
Discrete, Optical and Microwave Devices
Net sales of discrete, optical and microwave devices increased ¥11.9 billion, or 10.9%, to ¥120.6
billion ($1,022 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥108.7 billion for the previous
fiscal year. The increase was mainly due to higher sales of discrete semiconductors, which tracked an
upturn in the market.
Other
Other net sales consist of sales of color LCD panels, printed circuit boards, and other non-
semiconductor products and services. Our other net sales increased ¥5.7 billion, or 21.4%, to ¥32.5
billion ($276 million} for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥26.8 billion for the previous
fiscal year.

The business operations in this category are not core operations and therefore have an insignificant
impact on overall profit or loss.
Cost of Sales
Cost of sales increased ¥24.6 billion, or 5.2%, to ¥502.1 billion ($4,255 million) for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2007, from ¥477.5 billion for the previous fiscal year. Measures were enacted to
enhance productivity and cost efficiency, reducing the cost of sales as a percentage of net sales from
73.9% to 72.5%.
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Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses increased ¥10.9 billion, or 8.0%, to ¥131.8 billion ($1,117

INCOME (LOSS) miltion) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥120.9 billion for the previous fiscal year. The
IBNEJ&GE TAXES increase was primarily a result of increased investment in research and development into advanced
{¥ billion) technologies. As a percentage of net sales, research and development expenses increased from

50 18.7% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to 19.0%. Research and development expenses

included fees of ¥6.3 billion and ¥5.6 billion ($48 miliion) for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006
and 2007, respectively, paid to NEC in connection with research provided by NEC's laboratories.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased ¥3.7 billion, or 4.4%, to ¥87.0 billion ($737

25

million} for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥83.3 billion for the previous fiscal year. As a
percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased from 12.9% for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to 12.6%.

Provision for Income Taxes

NEC Electronics’ income (loss) before income taxes, provision for income taxes, and effective tax rate
for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007 were as follows:

Miltions of
Billions of yen U.S. dollars
_50 Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2007 F
03 04 05 06 07 -
Years ended March 31 Income (|055) before income LAXEG rerrrrrr e crrrtarae ¥(42_4) ¥(35_4) 5(300)
Provision for income taxes ‘
Current ........................................................................................ 95 2.1 18
DEfErTa -++crserrrrereersesarantnreieeeeetiiae e e r s b s s 46.6 3.0 25

NET INCOME (LOSS
( ) Effective tax rate (%) ................................................................... —_— — J—

(¥ billion}
50 Minority Interest in Income (loss) of Consolidated Subsidiaries

NEC Electronics recorded minority interest in income of a consolidated subsidiary in China of ¥0.6

billion ($5 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, compared to minority interest in loss of

2 ¥0.4 hillion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.
Net Income (Loss)
o NEC Efectronics recorded a net loss of ¥41.5 billion ($352 million), representing minus 6.0% of net
sales, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, compared to a net loss of ¥98.2 billion for the
5 previous fiscal year.
-50
-5
-100 —

03 04 05 06 07
Years ended March 31
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Our net sales on a geographic basis were as follows:

Japan

Net sales in Japan increased ¥24.4 billion, or 6.9%, to ¥377.3 billion {$3,197 million) for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥352.9 billion for the previous fiscal year. Growth was primarily due

to a sharp increase in sales of semiconductors for game consoles, which outweighed lower sales of
semiconductors for printers and driver ICs for PDPs (plasma display panels) and other applications.
United States of America

Net sales in the United States of America decreased ¥9.4 billion, or 12.2%, to ¥67.5 billion ($572
million} for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥76.9 billion for the previous fiscal year. The
decrease was primarily due to a decline in sales of system memory for mobile phones.

Europe

Net sales in Europe increased ¥15.9 billion, or 21.9%, to ¥88.9 billion ($753 million) for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥73.0 billion for the previous fiscal year. The increase was primarily
due to higher sales of graphics-processing LSIs for set-top hoxes (STBs), semiconductors for automo-
biles, and general-purpose microcontrollers.

Asia

Net sales in Asia, excluding Japan, increased ¥15.3 billion, or 10.7%, to ¥158.6 billion ($1,344
million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥143.3 billion for the previous fiscal year. The
increase was primarily due to growth in sales of products such as LCD driver ICs for LCD TVs and PC

monitors, generak-purpose microcontrollers, and discrete semiconductors.

NEC Electronics’ main customers for semiconductor products are manufacturers of consumer
electronic products.

Our net sales are generally higher from July through December compared to the period from January
through June. This is due to the higher volume of product sales to customers that manufacture
consumer products for the year-end holiday season.

The average annuat exchange rate of the Japanese yen agalnst the U S. dollar during the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2007 was approximately ¥5 lower compared to the fiscal year ended March 31,
2006. This increased the yen-denominated amount of U.S. dollar-denominated sales, thereby contrib-
uting to Increased earnings. From time to time, we enter into foreign currency forward exchange
contracts to reduce exposure to market risks from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange. We
recorded a net foreign exchange loss of ¥1.2 billion ($10 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2007. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange
rate in effect on the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rate for the fiscal year. Adjustments resulting from the translation are accumulated and
recorded in “accumulated other comprehensive income {loss})” in the consolidated balance sheets.
For details, see note 2 to our consolidated finangial statements.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

NEC Electronics’ financial policy is to secure adequate liquidity and capital resources for its

operations and to maintain the strength of its balance sheet. In order to secure stable long-term
capital resources, the Company issued convertible bond notes with share acquisition rights {zero
coupon unsecured yen convertible bonds due 2011) on May 27, 2004 and raised ¥110.0 billion. The
bond is subject to certain covenants. Under the conditions of the covenants, during a certain period,
bondholders have the right to claim conversion if the stock price exceeds 110% or more of the
conversion price of ¥9,860 ($84), as of March 31, 2007. In addition, the bond carries a call option
that gives the Company the right to call the bond at the principal amount after May 27, 2008, if the
Company’s stock price exceeds 130% or more of the conversion price for 30 consecutive trading
days. As of March 31, 2007, our total amount of long-term debt was ¥16.5 billion ($140 million) and
the outstanding balance of convertible bonds was ¥110.0 biltion ($932 million). In addition, we also
have a revolving credit facility under which an aggregate of up to ¥20.0 billion ($1869 million} in short-
term Joans is available to meet unforeseen short-term financing needs.

As of March 31, 2007, the total amount of interest-bearing debt, including convertible bonds,
borrowings, and obligations under certain capital leases, was ¥136.0 billion ($1,153 million). As of
March 31, 2007, we had ¥185.4 billion ($1,571 million) in cash and cash equivalents to maintain
liquidity. We believe that the cash and cash equivalents, the availability of short-term credit facili-
ties, and the Company’s cash flows from operations, are sufficient to meet its current cash require-
ments, including capital expenditures and debt service, for the foreseeable future. In order to
facilitate access to global capital markets, the Company has obtained credit ratings from Rating and
Investment Information, Inc. (R&I), one of Japan’s major credit rating agencies. As of March 31,
2007, the Company's senior long-term credit and current short-term debt ratings from R&| are BBB+
and a-2, respectively.

‘Financial Condition

Total Assets and Shareholders’ Equity

Total assets at March 31, 2007 totaled ¥695.9 billion {$5,897 million), a ¥49.4 billion decrease from
¥745 .3 billion as of March 31, 2006. This was mainly due to a decline of ¥25.7 hillion in cash and
cash equivalents, mostly due to payments for production equipment and other items purchased in the

previous fiscal year.
Shareholders’ equity was ¥265.1 billion ($2,246 million), decreasing ¥43.2 bitlion from ¥308.3
billion as of March 31, 2006. This decrease was mainly due to a net loss of ¥41.5 billion ($352 million).

Cash Flow | .

Net cash provided by operating activities increased ¥16.8 billion to ¥66.7 billion ($566 million) for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥49.9 biliion for the previous fiscal yeaf. The increase was
primarily due to an improvement in working capital from a decrease in accounts receivable and an
increase in accounts payable.
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Net cash used in investing activities increased ¥23.8 billion to ¥78.5 billion ($665 million) for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, from ¥54.7 billion for the previous fiscal year. This was primarily

NET CASH USED the result of a decline in cash received from the sale of equipment for leasing, coupled with an
:“clﬁ\‘;ﬁ?g;“e increase in payments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment.
{¥ billion) Net cash used in financing activities was ¥15.3 billion ($129 million) for the fiscal year ended

150 March 31, 2007, an increase of ¥2.7 billion from ¥12.5 billion for the previous fiscal year, mainly as

a result of repayment of debt,

10 rCapital Expenditures, o .
NEC Electronics’ capital expendltures for the flscal years ended March 31 2006 and 2007 were
%0 ¥83.0 billion and ¥105.9 billion ($897 million), respectively. Capital expenditures for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2008 are estimated at ¥70.0 billion ($593 million). For the fiscal year ended March
31, 2007, capital expenditures were largely allocated to the upgrade and expansion of our 300mm
&0 wafer line and testing lines. Current plans cal! for capital expenditures for the fiscal year ending March
31, 2008 to be primarily earmarked for the same tasks.
| <Of:balance Sheet:A RSN
NEC Electronics securitizes recelvables by selling certain trade recelvables to Special Purpose Entities
) ) ("SPEs") and others without recourse from time to time. The purpose of these securitization transac-
0 03 04 05 06 07 tions is to enhance asset efficiency. NEC Electronics services, administers and collects the

Years ended March 31 securitized trade receivables on behalf of the SPEs and others. We received proceeds of ¥46.0 billion
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.
NEC Electronics has also sold portions of its machinery and equipment to leasing companies and to
NET CASH PROVIDED certain SPEs, leasing them back for periods of less than five years, for the purpose of eliminating

BY FINANCING risks associated with a decline in the value of obsolete production facilities, as well as stabilizing

ACTIVITIES
(¥ billion) cash flows. These transactions are treated as operating leases for accounting purposes. The amount
75 of machinery and equipment sold for lease back to the Company in the fiscal years ended March 31,

2006 and 2007 was ¥52.2 billion and ¥38.6 billion {($327 million), respectively.

—‘—1

50 ; e . i) s : :
NEC Electronlcs recogmzes the followmg as some of the most SIgnlf‘ icant nsk factors faced in its
business operations.

Impact of Market Fluctuations (Silicon Cycle)

25

The semiconductor industry is known to be subject to cyclical market fluctuations, a phenomenon
known as the “silicon cycle.” Although we operate on the basis of careful monitoring of changes in
market conditions, it is difficult to completely avoid the impact of market fluctuations due to economic

therefore, could lead to sales declines and lower fab utilization rates, which may in turn result in

o ] cycles in countries around the world and changes in the demand for end products. Market downturns,

diminished cost ratios and a significant deterioration in profits.

5
03 04 05 06 07

Years ended March 31

NEC ELECTRONICS FINANCIAL REPORT 2007 9




CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

(¥ billion}
200

160

120

10

80

40

0
03 04 05 06 07

Years ended March 31

Foreign Currency Fluctuations

The operating results and financial position of NEC Electronics are affected by fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange markets. We take various measures to avert of reduce risks relating 1o fluctuations
in the foreign currency exchange markets, such as forward exchange contracts. However, these
fluctuations may impact the costs and sales of various products denominated in foreign currencies,
as well as the production cost of overseas manufacturing facilities. In addition, conversion of the
Company’s assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and the financial statements of
our overseas subsidiaries into Japanese yen, may also affect our assets and liabilities, as well as
earnings and expenses.

Natural Disasters

Natural disasters such as earthquakes, typhoons, and floods, as well as accidents, acts of terror and
other factors beyond the controi of NEC Electronics, could severely damage semiconductor manufac-
turing facilities and other facilities. NEC Electronics owns facilities in areas where earthquakes occur
at a frequency higher than the global average. Consequently, the effects of earthquakes and other
events could force a halt to manufacturing and other operations. The company takes various
measures, such as enhancing the resistance of buildings at manufacturing and other sites against
earthquakes, in order to minimize losses and damages. Additionally, NEC Electronics is insured
against losses and damages relating to earthquakes; however, the insurance may be unable to cover
all the losses and damages if the earthquake is extraordinarily severe.

Competition

The semiconductor industry is extremely competitive, and NEC Electronics is exposed to fierce
competition from rival companies around the world in areas such as product performance, structure,
pricing and quality. To maintain competitiveness, NEC Electronics takes various measures including
development of leading-edge technologies and cost reduction, but in the event that we are not
competitive, our market share may decline, which may negatively impact our financial results. Severe
price competition may also lead to sharp declines in the market price of our products. When this
cannot be offset by cost reductions, our gross profit margin ratio may decline.

Poor Decision-making Concerning Investments in Capital and R&D

As an integrated device manufacturer (IDM), many of the semiconductor products sold by us are
developed and produced by ourselves. As such, substantial capital expenditures are made annually to
stay ahead in technological innovation and to boost production. While we constantly strive to invest
the appropriate amount at the appropriate time, poor decisions concerning either timing or amount
could cause us to lose substantial business opportunities or suffer operational losses.

NEC Electronics also invests heavily in R&D for leading-edge technologies. However, errors in selecting
R&D subjects, delays in development and other factors could prevent such investments from helping
sales and earnings, essentially nullifying the investments.

Product Defects, Anomalies and Malfunctions

Although we make an effort to improve the guality of semiconductor products and related software,
they may contain defects, anomalies or malfunctions that are undetectable at the time of shipment
due to increased sophistication of technologies and diversity of ways in which our products are used
by customers. These defects, anomalies or malfunctions could be discovered after our products are
embedded in customers’ end products, resulting in the return or exchange of our products, claims for
compensatory damages, or discontinuation of the use of our products, which could negatively impact
our profits and operating results. To prepare for such events, we have product liability insurance
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and recall insurance, but it is not guaranteed that the full costs of reimbursements would be
covered by these.
Impairment of Long-lived Assets
NEC Electronics has recorded tangible fixed assets and many other long-lived assets in its consolidated
balance sheet, and periodically reviews whether it will be able to recover the recorded residual value
of these assets in the form of future cash flows. If these assets do not generate sufficient cash flows,
NEC Electronics may be forced to recognize an impairment in their value.
Legal Issues

NEC Electronics' products utilize a wide range of technologies, and it is possible that a third party may
' claim that our certain technologies infringe upen its intellectual property rights. In the event of such
claims, we may incur substantial costs related to legal actions and other expenses in defense of us
and/or our customers. Depending on the outcome of these claims, we could be ordered to pay
substantial amounts in damages or be forced to cease use of such technology due to the demand for
excessive license fees which are not economically feasible.

Our operations are subject to various laws and regulations in Japan and other countries around the
world pertaining to the environment, safety, fair business practices and other matters, We strive to
comply fully with these laws and regulations. However, in the event of a lawsuit or legal proceeding
based on violations of such laws and regulations, a ruling against us could negatively impact our
earnings and operating results.

NEC Electronics America, inc. has been named as one of the defendants in numerous class action
civil antitrust lawsuits by direct purchasers (customers who had directly purchased DRAM from NEC
Electronics in the past) seeking damages for alleged antitrust violations in the DRAM industry in the
U.S. Although these class action lawsuits are expected to be resolved by settlement, NEC Electronics
America, Inc. is still in litigation, or in settlement negotiations along with NEC, with several customers
who have opted out of such class action lawsuits. NEC Electronics America, Inc. has also been named
as one of the defendants in numerous class action civil lawsuits by indirect purchasers {customers
who had purchased products containing DRAM), as well as a number of antitrust lawsuits filed by the
Attorneys General of numerous states in the U.S.

Additionally, NEC Electronics, together with NEC, is fully cooperating with the European Commission in
its investigation of possible violations of European competition laws in the DRAM industry in Europe.

Furthermore, NEC Electronics is also subject to (1) investigations in connection with possible
antitrust violations in the SRAM industry being conducted by the U.S. Department of Justice and the
European Commission, (2) investigations in connection with possible antitrust viotations in the semi-
conductor industry by the Korea Fair Trade Commission, as well as (3} investigations by the U.S.
Department of Justice, the European Commission, the Korea Fair Trade Commission, and the Compe-
tition Bureau of Canada in connection with possible antitrust violations in the thin-film transistor liguid
crystal display (TFT-LCD) industry.

Following the initiation of investigations by the U.S. Department of Justice into the SRAM and TFT-
LCD industries, numerous class action civil antitrust lawsuits seeking damages for alleged antitrust
violations have been brought against NEC Electronics America, Inc. in the U.S. and elsewhere.

Although the outcome of the aforementioned investigations, antitrust lawsuits and settlement
negotiations is not known at this time, NEC Electronics has booked an amount of approximately ¥3.2
billion ($27 million) under litigation and settlement expenses, for estimable expenses that may arise
from the U.S. DRAM civil lawsuits and settiements with customers in the U.5.

NEC ELECTRONICS FINANCIAL REPORT 2007 11




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

NEC Electronics Corporation and Consolicated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2006 and 2007

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.5. dollars

ASSETS 2006 2007 2007
Current assets:
Cash and cash equUIVAIENTS - e ¥ 211,060 ¥ 185,372 $ 1,570,949
Notes and accounts receivable, trade:
Re|ated party .............................................................................................. 13’604 1_1_,793 99'941
0 a1 T S O 100,975 88,313 748,415
Allowance for doubtful Notes and ACCOUNTS «rr - rrrrmrmrrriararir st rrrasseninn (729) {563) (4,771)
Loans receivable from related party « e 228 1 8
INVENTOFIEE v tsterttunn e memmm e bbb e e ce e s b e r et 72,525 82,573 699,771
Deferred TAX ASSELG --rrerrrerm e e 6'178 6’795 57,585
Prepaid expenses and other CUrrent aSSELS -+ e 9,529 7,330 62,119
TOtal CUITENT ASSETG rrrrrrrrrrrrersserirrr e irra st a e s s s rssa e 413,370 381,614 3,234,017
Investments:
MarKELADIE SECUIILIBE ++rrrrrrerermrrrremrmmsmrserasessieeieetesesrersrmsnssse e sessesssssssseireseas 13,901 5,997 50,822
Investments, other:
AFfiliated COMPARIES + v terrteimmrrar i — 746 6,322
0011 LT LT e O P P OSSP 1,696 411 3,483
15,597 7,454 60,627
Property, plant and equipment:
(I LT TR L P o P PP P S 17,365 16,849 142,788
BUIIGINES #2500 someress e ss s s 243,976 244,852 2,075,017
Machinery and GQUIPMERT -« 954,969 965,005 ' 8,178,009
CONSIIUCLION IN PrOGIESS «++rereesreastssrtssr sttt 19,189 15,421 130,686
1,235,499 1,242,127 10,526,500
Accumulated depreciation s i (933,374) (949,304) (8,044,949)
302,125 292 823 2,481,551
Other assets:
Deferred tax AGGERLS e 1’739 3,892 32’983
License fees and other intangibles -« e 11,596 9,357 79,297
(0= ST LT P, 854 1,046 8,864
14,189 14,295 121,144
¥ 745,281 ¥ 695,886 $ 5,897,339

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of

. Millions of yen U.$. dallars
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ' 2006 2007 2007
Current liabilities:

Short_term borrowings .................................................................................... ¥ 7_201 ¥ 3'609 s 30,585
Current portion of longtenn debt e 6,471 15,914 134,864
Current portion of obligation under capital leases to related party . -o-wooeeees 1,402 1,080 9,153
Notes and accounts payable, trade:
REIGLE DALY «eeeeer e 27,705 31,198 264,390
(0101 LT OO O ST PP SO S OPPTPRR TP PPPT 0 S0 P P RIS 95,234 101,269 858,212
Accounts payable, other and accrued expenses:
REIALEA DALY = wreererererererssstseststrirmins sttt 4,201 4,649 39,398
01 £ =S L LT RITITITII I 53,839 53,651 454,669
ACCIUET INCOME LAXES r+--ewwerreremrssrermemtaaatneram et e et ssbbb s e s 3,770 2,792 23,661
Other current lFADIHHES - r«cerrrer e 11,071 8,798 74,560
Total current abilities =orrceceeer i 210,894 222,960 1,889,492
Long-term liabllities:
Long-term BT oeeeeererrr e 127,185 110,634 937,576
Obligation under capital leases 1o related party - 6,050 4,793 40,619
Accrued pension and SEVETANCE COSES « i 75,761 71,535 606,229
Deferred tax ||ab|||t|es .................................................................................... 9'559 10’847 91,924
Other .............................................................................................................. 3,459 5’214 44,186
222,014 203,023 1,720,534
Minority shareholders’ equity In consolidated subsidiaries —-----------ccoererenens 4,122 4,835 40,974
Commitments and contingent llabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock:
Authorized — 400,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 123,500,000 Shares -«eererreremsrreamecaannenen. 85,955 85,955 728,432
Additional Paig-in CAPITAL -+« s srersrrrre et 281,014 281,039 2,381,687
ACCUMUIAtEd QEFICIL -++rrerereerrrerrrsisrerminii i {57.,369) (98,901) {838,144}
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCome (|0SS) «rrererrerermrremmeeenn (1,342) {3,017 {25,568)
Treasury stock, at cost: :
2006 — 1,020 SHAMES wrerersrsrssrressses sttt (7
2007 — 1,445 SHAES ++rovrerrrrrimrmisrrise st (8) (68)
308,251 265,068 2,246,339

¥745,281 ¥695,886 $5,897,339
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

NEC Electronics Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007

Millians of yen

Thousands of

U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2007 2007
Sales and other income:
NEL SAIES +rrorrrrrrrrietriairinr e e e ¥708’014 ¥645,963 ¥692’280 $5,866'780
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment and other --cve 2,443 1,917 2,548 21,593
Interest and dividend income ........................................................ 489 1,078 1,929 16’348
Gain on disposition of iINVeStMents in SECURtIEs -« 112 1,365 6,436 54,542
711,058 650,323 703,193 5,959,263
Costs and expenses:
COSL OF SAIEG c+rrererreersrmioiasst et stertivararars s s e rr s s rr et ne et s aens 485,871 477,476 502,086 4,254,966
Research and developmEnt -« et 107,942 120,874 131,751 1,116,534
Selling, general and administrative <« - 81,025 83,302 87,000 737,288
RESHUCLUNING CRAFBES rrrveeresrrrmsmsmsnsnsns st — 1,683 4,192 35,525
Litigation and settlement expense ................................................ R 3'413 1'435 12,161
Loss on sales or disposal of property,
p|ant and equipment and Other oo e 7,483 4,132 9,229 78‘212
INLEFEET rrerr et ror s e e e 749 87 A 698 5'916
Net fOreign EXChange [0Ss - -+t wirimimsrss ittt 013 5190 1,197 10,144
Loss On investments in SeCUriti@s e 666 436 980 8,305
684,649 692,709 738,568 6,259,051
Income (loss) before income taxes - - 26,409 (42,386) (35,375) {299,788)
Provision fOr INCOME taxes -t 10,714 56,166 5,105 43,263
Income (loss) before minority interest,
equity in loss of afflllated companies v 15,695 {98,552) (40,480) {(343,051)
Minority interest in income (loss) of consolidated subsidiaries-------- (336) (354) 552 4,678
Income (loss) hefore equity in loss of affillated companies--------- 16,031 (98,198) (44,032) (347,729)
Equity in loss of affillated companies - ocoreeminincinn, — — (468) {3,966)
Nt INCOME ([0SS) -+ ererrrrresrrsssimssmssst ettt ¥ 16,031 ¥ (98,198) ¥ (41,500) $ (351,695)
Yen U.S. dollars
2005 2006 2007 2007
Basic net income (loss) per share - oo ¥ 129.81 ¥(795.13) ¥(336.04) $ (2.85)
Diluted net income (loss) per share - eorrm i 120.30 (795.13) (336.04) (2.85)
Cash divldends per Shal‘e: ................................................................ 2000 —— — —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

NEC Electronics Corparation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Accumulated

Additional other Treasury

Common paidin Accumutated comprehensive stock,
stock capital deficit income {loss) at cost Toral
Balance at March 31, 2004 - ¥85,955 ¥275,667 ¥ 27,268 ¥(17,147) ¥{4) ¥371,739
Contribution to capital 558 558
Compensation expense for stock options 468 468

Comprehensive income {loss): :
NET INCOMIE (IDSS) rorrrrrresremmrsrmrssimsssies sttt 16,031 16,031
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,260 1,260
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax--- 5,791 5,791
Unrealized gains {losses) on
marketable securities, net of tax e 493 493
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative
financial INStruments, Net of Ta) - . (5} {5)
Comptehensive income (|°55) .......................................................... 23‘570
Dividends -- {2,470) (2,470)
Purchase of treasury stock at cost - (2} (2)
Balance at March 31, 2005 ¥85,955 ¥276,693 ¥ 40,829 ¥ (9,608) ¥(6) ¥393,863
Contribution to capital ----«ceeeeeer 6,092 6,092
Transaction under commaon controd - {1,974) {1,874
Compensation expense for stock options 203 203
Comprehensive income (loss):
NEt INCAME {JEGS) ++resrerressrissemssmmsremiemmrs st ses s s (98,198) (98,198)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjuStmMEnts -« smmememesenseenine 4,757 4,757
Minimum pension liability adjustment, NEt Of tax:----xeeeemnee 1,243 1,243
Unrealized gains {losses) on
marketable securities, net of tax e 2.304 2,304
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax -~ (38} (38)
Comprehensive income (loS§) v (89,932}
Purchase of treasury STOCK, AL COSY +-mrrermesr st (1) (1}
Balance at March 31, 2006 ¥85,955 ¥281,014 ¥(57,369) ¥ {1,342) ¥(7) ¥308,251
Compensation expense for stock options 25 25

Comprehensive income (Ioss)

Net income (loss) - (41,500) {41,500)
Other comprehenswe income (Ioss)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 2,789 2,789
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax (878} {878}
Unrealized gains {losses) on

marketable securities, net of tax (3,336} {3,336)

Unrealized gains {losses) on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax s 12 12

Comprehensive income (loss) (42,913)
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of tax (262) {262)
Effect of change in fiscal year-end of certain subsidiary (32) {32)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost {1) (1)
Balance at March 31, 2007 - e ¥85,955 ¥281,039 ¥{98,901) ¥ (3,017) ¥(8) ¥265,068

Thousands of U.S, dollars

Accumulated

Additional other Treasury
Common paid-in Accumutated  comprehensive stock,
stotk capital deficit income (loss) at cost Total
Balance at March 31, 2006 - $728,432 $2,381.475 ${486,178) $(11.374) $(60) $2,612,255
Compensaticn expense for stock optnons 212 212
Comprehensive income (loss):
NEL INCOME (JDSS) ++rmrretiarestesssrmiessmsmsesinms st bt (351,695) {351,695}
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency transiation adjustments e 23,636 23,636
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax -«ecrerereiene {7,441} (7.441)

Unrealized gains (losses} on
marketable securities, net of tax -wrrrrer e (28,271) (28,271)
Unrealized gains (losses} on derivative

financial instruments, net of tax 102 102
Comprehensive income (loss) {363,669}
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of tax {2,220) {2,220)
Effect of change in fiscal year-end of certam 3ubstd|ary {271} {271)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost - (8 (8)

Balance at March 31, 2007
See notes to consolidated financial statements,

$728,432 $2,381,687  $(838,144) $(25,5€8) §$(68) $2,246,339
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

NEC Electronics Cerporation and Cansclidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2006 2007 2007
Cash fiows from operating actlvities:
NEL INCOME (IOSS) wxrrrererrsrersrsmmeristasmrers st st sb et ¥ 16,031 ¥ (98,198) ¥ {41,500) $ (351,695)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities;
Depreciation and amortization i 95,999 89,342 82,960 703,051
Deferred INCOME LAXES - rrretrrerrerararnnraresinrrrreesrssssianesseasinrnenens 384 46,637 2,998 25,407
Loss on property, plant and equipment, net 2,644 2,817 5,983 50,703
Realized (gain) loss on marketable securities «---------oeeerrrrnns 376 178 (6,383) (54,093)
Provision for pensicn and severance costs, less payments < 2,708 1,072 (1,115) (9,449)
Equity in loss of affiligted companies «- - eoeesmninn.. _ — 468 3,966
Minority interest in income {loss) of consolidated subsidiaries - {336} {354) 552 4,678
{Increase) decrease in notes and accounts receivable - 9,975 (7,928) 15,985 135,466
{Increase) decrease in INVENTOMES - wrerererie 5,024 (3,062) (9,333) (79,093)
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable - eeeeee (9,417) 5,675 16,171 137,042
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities ----oooeoreresisiinnaes 5134 6,605 (4,239) {35,924)
OLhEr, NBL vttt 731 7.106 4,184 35,458
Net cash provided by operating activities oo, 129,153 49,890 66,731 565,517
Cash flows from Investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment -+ ooeveian 45,544 56,474 39,803 337,313
Additions to property, plant and equipment » .-, (176,391) (106,642) (121,126} {1,026,492)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securitiog - 150 395 3,660 31,017
Purchase of marketable SeCUrHIES -« - e - (816) — —
ACQUISItion Of MIROMLY INLEIESE - e, (67) — —_ _—
Investments in affiliated companies -, — — (1,400) (11,864)
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable from related party - 6,669 (223) 242 2,051
Increase in other investment SeCUNLtIes - .. (221) {1,021) —_ —_
OHhEr, AET - et s {1,780) (2,840) 324 2,746
Net cash used in investing activitigg e, (126,096) (54,673} . (78,497) {665,229)
Cash flows from financing actlvities:
Proceeds from long-term debt e 111,894 2,335 —_— —_
Repayments of [ORZAErm debt v (49,927 (10,581) {7,191) (60,941)
Increase (decrease} in short-term borrowings, Net -« .o (380) 124 {4,018) (34,051)
Repayments of lease obligation to related party -« eoermemeeeennne (1,004) (1,198) {1,865) (15,805)
DIVIJEAAS PAIL -+ rerererererermsssisinieiem ettt (3,703) (1,235) —_ —
Transaction UNAEr COMMON CONEIQ - wreeremrsistermrrnemressrsessinsssens — (1,974) —_ —
Payments on intangible assets purchase contracts ----------roveees — — {2,196) (18,610)
OREE, REL - e e {2) (1) (3) {25)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ------oeeeeee 56,878 (12,530) (15,273) (129,432)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ---- 296 2,682 1,595 13,517
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents oo 60,231 (14,631) {25,444) (215,627)
Effect of change In fiscal year-end of certain subsidiary -+ — — (244) (2,068)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year--«---------vsveirmnisininns 165,460 225,691 211 060 1,788,644
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - ¥225691 ¥211,060 ¥ 185,372 $ 1,570,949
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:
|nterest ...................................................................................... ¥ 710 ¥ 927 ¥ 706 s 5’983
INCOME LAXES ¢+ rrerereern it bt e eaei s 11,460 8‘217 33 280
Non-cash investing and financing transaction:
Contribution to capital ............................................................... 558 6'092 J— —
Machinery and equipment obtained by capital leases ---weeeeres 392 3,337 220 1,864
Intangible assets purchase CONtracts - e, — 5,243 721 6,110

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NEC Electronics Corporation and Consotidated Subsidiarles

1. Background and Basis of Presentation o

NEC Electronics Corporation was formed on November 1, 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of NEC Corpo-
ration (“NEC") as a result of a separation by new incorporation (shinsetsu bunkatsuj under the corporate
separation (kaisha bunkatsu) provisions of the former Japanese Commercial Code. Pursuant to NEC's sepa-
ration plan, substantially all of NEC's semiconductor business operations and related assets and liabilities,
excluding those related to the general-purpose DRAM business, were transferred to NEC Electronics Corpo-
ration, at historical cost, in exchange for the issuance to NEC of 100,000,000 shares of its common stock.
Cn November 1, 2002, NEC Electronics Corporation acquired most of the assets that were intended to be
transferred from NEC by operation of law. However, certain asset transfers, specifically, the investments in
NEC Electronics (China) Co., Ltd., previously named Beijing Hua Hong NEC IC Design Co., Ltd., and
Shougang NEC Electronics Co., Ltd., were subject to Chinese government approval and registration. These
transfers were completed during the year ended March 31, 2004. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the basis that all intended asset transfers, including the investments in
these Chinese subsidiaries, had been completed as planned for the periods prior to corporate separation.
NEC had operated the businesses which were transferred to NEC Electronics Corporation as an internal
division and through various business units and subsidiaries.

NEC Electronics Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a leading integrated provider of system-
level semiconductor solutions for electronic products and systems across a variety of key markets in the
communications, computing and peripherals, consumer electronics, and automotive and industrial sectors.

2. Significant Accounting Policies e

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principtes generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basls of consolldation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NEC Electronics Corporation and all entities
in which NEC Electronics Corpeoration has a controlling financial interest. All significant intercompany trans-
actions and accounts are eliminated. For purposes of financial reporting, certain foreign subsidiaries have a
December 31 fiscal year end. Therefore, the Company recognizes the results of operations and financial
position of such subsidiaries on a basis of a three-month lag. There have been no significant transactions
with such subsidiaries during the periods from January 1 to March 31,

During the year ended March 31, 2007, certain subsidiary changed the fiscal year-end to March 31 from
December 31, in order to conform the subsidiary's yearend with that of the Company. The loss of the subsid-
iary for the months that exceeds twelve months was directly charged to the accumulated deficit.

Cash equivalents
Al highly liquid Investments with a maturity at their date of acquisition of three months or less are consid-
ered to be cash equivalents.

Foreign currency transiation

Foreign currency transactions are measured at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the trans-
action dates. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
remeasured at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Exchange differences are charged
or credited to income.
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Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into ven at applicable year-end rates of
exchange and all revenue and expense accounts are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing
during the year. The resulting translation adjustments are accumulated and included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) classified as part of shareholders’ equity.

Aflowance for doubtful notes and accounts
An allowance for doubtful notes and accounts is provided based on credit loss history and an evaluation of
any specific doubtful notes and accounts.

investments

The Company classifies its marketable equity securities as available-for-sale, which are reported at fair value
with unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax.
When a decline in value of the marketable security is deemed to be otherthan-temporary, the Company
recognizes an impairment loss to the extent of the decline. In determining if and when such a decline in
value is ather-than-temporary, the Company evaluates market conditions, trends of earnings, and other key
measures. Realized gains or losses on the sale of marketable securities are based on the average cost of a
particular security held at the time of sale.

The investments in affiliated companies (investees over which the Company has the ability to exercise
significant influence, and corporate joint ventures) are accounted for by the equity method.

Other investment securities are stated at cost. The Company pericdically evaluates whether the value of the
investment has declined. When the fair value is less than its cost, the Company judges whether the decline of
an investment value is temporary. The Company evaluates various conditions, such as the duration of the
decline, significance of the decline, the financial condition and the expected future performance of the investee
as well as intention and ability, for the Company to maintain the investment. If the decline is deemed to be
other-thantemporary, the Company recognizes the difference between the investment’s cost and its fair value
as an impairment loss.

inventories
inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market principally on a first-in, first-out basis.
The Company analyzes all inventory including slow moving and obsolete inventory, and writes down such h

inventory to its estimated market value based on assumptions about future demand and market conditions.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed principally using the declining-
balance methed at rates based on the following estimated useful lives of the assets: buildings, mainly 15 to
45 years, machinery and equipment, mainly 4 to 8 years. Maintenance and repairs, including minor renew-
als and betterments, are charged to income as incurred.

Leased assets meeting certain criteria are capitalized and ameortized using the declining-balance method
over the lease term,

License fees and other intangibles
License fees and other intangibles are amortized on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives.

impafrment of long-ived assets

Longlived assets to be held and used, including license fees and other intangibles, are evaluated for impairment

using an estimate of undiscounted cash flows whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If the estimate of undiscounted cash flows is less than k

the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is recorded based on the fair value of the assets.
Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are evaluated at the lower of carrying amount or fair value

less cost to sell.

income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement
and tax basis of assets and liabilities, using the enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the tempo-
rary differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are also recognized for the estimated future
tax benefits attributable to operating loss carryforwards. Valuation allowances are established to reduce
deferred tax assets to their net realizable value if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.




Stock-based compensation

The Company had accounted for its stock-based compensation plans under the fair value recognition
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS”) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. On April 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004),
Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123(R)") under the modified prospective method, The adoption of SFAS No.
123(R) did not have a significant effect on its financial position or results of operations because the Company
continues to account for its stock-based compensation plans under the fair value recognition provisions.

Net Income per share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares
of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per share assumes the dilution that could
oceur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common
stock, or resulted in the issuance of commaon stock unless their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for transactions when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the seller's price to the
buyer is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of products s recognized when the customer has taken title to the product and the
risk and rewards of ownership have been substantively transferred. Under normal terms and conditions,
this may occur at the time of delivery to the customer’s site or upon customer acceptance.

A sales rebate to certain distributors is provided based on the amount of purchases by the distributors
and is recognized as a reduction of revenue based on each of the underlying revenue transactions that
results in progress by the distributors toward earning the rebate.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company recognizes all derivative financial instruments in the consolidated financial statements at fair
value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the derivative financial instruments. Changes in the fair
value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized periodically in income or in shareholders’
equity as a component of other comprehensive income (ioss) depending on whether the derivative financial
instruments qualify for hedge accounting, and if so, whether they qualify as a fair value hedge or a cash flow
hedge. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments accounted for as a fair value hedge are
recorded in income along with the portion of the change in the fair value of the hedged item that relates to
the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments accounted for as a cash flow
hedge, to the extent they are effective as a hedge, are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss), net
of tax. Amounts recorded to other comprehensive income (loss) are reclassified into earnings when the
hedged transaction effects earnings or is probable of not occurring. Changes in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments not qualifying as a hedge are reported in income.

Securitization of receivables

The Company has several securitization programs under which certain trade receivables are sold, without
recourse, to Special Purpose Entities (“SPEs”) and others. In certain securitizations, the Company has
retained a subordinated interest.

When the Company sells the receivables in a securitization transaction, the carrying value of the receiv-
ables is allocated to the portion retained and the portion sold, based on their relative fair value at the sale
date. Gain or loss on the sale of the receivables is calculated based on the allocated carrying value of the
receivables sold. Retained interests are initially recorded at the allocated carrying value of the receivables
and are periodically reviewed for impairment. The Company generally estimates fair value based on the
present value of future expected cash flows using certain assumptions; credit losses and discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations are legal obligations associated with the retirement of leng-lived assets. The
Company recognizes the fair value of asset retirement obligations as a liability when a reasonable estimate
can be made and the related asset retirement cost is capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the re-
lated asset. The asset retirement cost is depreciated over the estimated useful life of the related asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company records changes in the asset retirement obligations resuiting
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3. U.S. Dollar Amounts

4. Investments

from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original estimate of
undiscounted cash flows at the end of each peried.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 20086
have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation.

New Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued the interpretation No. 48, “Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for income
taxes™ (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 clarifies that the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in consoli-
dated financial statements and prescribes recognition and measurement of a tax position. This also clarifies
guidance on derecognition, ctassification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and
transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and the Company wilt adopt
this interpretation in the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the effect
that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its financial conditions and the result of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157"). SFAS No.
157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and the
Company wilt adopt SFAS No. 157 effective April 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that
the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its financial conditions and the result of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (“SFAS
No. 158"). SFAS No. 158 requires plan sponsors recognize the funded status of defined benefit pension
and other postretirement plans in their balance sheet and measure the fair value of plan assets and benefit
obligations as of the date of the fiscal year end balance sheet. SFAS No. 158 also requires additional infor-
mation to disclose in the notes to financial statements. On March 31, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 158. The adoption of the change in the measurement date provisions of SFAS No. 158 is not applicable
as the Company already uses a measurement date of March 31 for the majority of its plans. See Note 8 for
further details of the effect of adopting SFAS No. 158 on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabifities—including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS No. 159"). SFAS No. 159 permits
companies to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates. Unrealized gains and
losses on items for which the fair value option has heen elected shall be recognized in earnings. SFAS No.
159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and the Company will adopt SFAS No. 159
effective April 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will
have on its financial conditions and the result of operations.

U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of the readers of the consolidated financial
statements. These transiations sho-uld not be construed as representations that the yen amounts actually
represent, or have been or could be converted into, U.S, dollars.

A rate of ¥118=U.5.%1, the approximate current rate at March 31, 2007, has been used for the purpose
of presentation of the U.S. dellar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The summary of marketable equity securities at March 31, 2006 and 2007 which were classified as
available-for-sale was as follows:

Millions of yen

Gross Gross

unrealized unrealized

holding holding
Cost gains losses Fair value
Mareh 31, 2006 e ¥4,231 ¥9 670 — ¥13,901
March 31, 2007 v 1,933 4,064 —_ 5,997
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5. Inventories

Thousands of U.S. doliars

Gross (Gross
unrealized unrealized
holding holding
Cost gains losses Fair value
March 31, 2007 oo $16,381 $34,441 —_— $50,822

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were ¥150 million, ¥395 million and ¥8,681 million
($73,568 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2066 and 2007, respectively. Gross realized
gains were ¥112 million, ¥54 million and ¥6,383 million ($54,093 thousand) for the years ended March
31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Gross realized losses, including impairments, were ¥4838 million
and ¥232 million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Investments in equity securities, included in investments, other, with an aggregate carrying amount of
¥1,277 million and ¥261 million {$2,212 thousand) at March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively, consist of
numerous investments in securities of non-public companies. These investments were not evaluated for
impairment at March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively, because the Company did not identify any events or
changes in circumstances that may have had a significant adverse effect on the fair value of those invest-
ments. The Company recognized otherthan-temporary impairment losses on investments in securities of
non public companies of ¥163 million, ¥221 miflion and ¥994 million ($8,424 thousand) for the years
ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The Company's investment in affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method together with a
percentage of the Company’s ownership of common stock at March 31, 2007 is Adcore-tech Co., Ltd.
{11.7%). Since Adcoretech Co., Ltd. is a corporate joint venture, the Company accounts for the investment
hy the equity method.

-
.

Inventories at March 31, 2006 and 2007 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 2006 2007 2007
Finished prOdLlCtS ............................................................................... ¥18’406 ¥22'750 5192,796
Work in process and semifinished COMPONENES «-wommreesrerernressrranen 36,472 40,916 346,746
Raw materials and purchased COMPONENLS «-wwrererererrermrsssss e 17,647 18,907 160,229

¥72,525  ¥82,573 $699,771

6. License Fees and Other Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired during the year ended March 31, 2007 totaled ¥2.121 million {($17,975
thousand}, which are subject to amortization and primarily consist of license fees of ¥1,737 million
($14,720 thousand). The weighted-average amortization period for license fees is approximately 5 years.

License fees and other intangibles subject to amortization at March 31, 2006 and 2007 consisted of
the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2007 2007

Gross Gross Gross
carrying Accumulated carrying Accumulated carrying Accumutated
March 31 amount amortization amount amortization amount amortization
License fegg «-omoreermnmeerenene ¥13,732 ¥(4,443) ¥14,935 ¥ (7,773) $126,568 $(65,873)
(0]11]= CRUTII RS 6,602 (4,295) 4,965 {2,770) 42,076 {23,474)

¥20,334 ¥(8,738) ¥19,900 ¥(10,543) $168,644 $(89,347)

NEC ELECTRONICS FINANCIAL REPORT 2007 21




The aggregate amortization expense for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was ¥4,403
million, ¥5,560 million and ¥4,352 million ($36,881 thousand), respectively. The estimated amortization
expense for the next five years is as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
¥4,117 $34,890

2,286 19,373

1,205 10,212

576 4,881

306 2,593

Intangibles with indefinite useful lives at March 31, 2006 and 2007 were insignificant.

7. Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt
Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2006 and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars

March 31 2006 2007 2007
Unsecured loans, principally from banks, including bank overdrafts

{average interest rate of 2.43% in 2006 and 2.51% in 2007) --------» ¥7.,201 ¥3,609 $30,585

At March 31, 2007, the Company had unused lines of credit for short-term financing aggregating ¥20,000
million {$169,492 thousand) subject to an annual renewal with commitment fees on the unused portion of
0.15% and ¥14,208 million ($120,407 thousand) with no commitment fees generally with maturities within
one year.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2006 and 2007 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. doltars
March 31 2006 2007 2007
Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies,
due through 2008, with interest rates of 0.72% to 5.00%
at March 31, 2006 and with interest rates of 0.85% to 5.00%
at March 31, 2007:
BEOUFEM «+eret 1 v maremremem et ittt et b e e e s ¥ 291 ¥ 41 S 347
UNSECUIEQ -+ e rre e sreemremar sttt 23,435 16,507 139,890
Zero coupon unsecured yen convertible bonds due 2011,
convertible currently at ¥9,860 for one common share,
redeemable before maturity date <« --wrrormmreimsns 110,000 110,000 932,203
' 133,656 126,548 1,072,440
LesS — poTtion due WItHIT OTIE YEAT v rrrmmrremireis e {6,471} {15,914) {134,864)

¥127,185 ¥110,634 $ 937,576

The convertible bonds are contingently convertible based on market price. The conversion prices of the
convertible bonds are subject to adjustment if there is a share split or consolidation of shares, or, in certain
circumstances, if new shares are issued at a price less than the current quoted market price. In addition,
the bonds carry a call option that gives the Company the right to call the bonds at the principal amount after
May 27, 2008, if the Company’s stock price is 130% or more of the conversion price for 30 consecutive
trading days.

The Company is required to repay certain unsecured loans, the balance of which was ¥15,000 miilion
($127,119 thousand} at March 31, 2007, if; net assets fall below ¥150,000 million ($1,271,186 thousand),
operating cash flow in the consolidated statements of cash flows would be negative for two consecutive
half year periods, or NEC's ownership interest in NEC Electronics Corporation falls to 50% or less or NEC
Electronics Corporation no longer is & consolidated subsidiary of NEC. None of the above had occurred as of
March 31, 2007.
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Property, plant and equipment with a net book value of ¥5,932 million ($50,271 thousand) was pledged
as security for certain long-term debt at March 31, 2007,

The Company has agreements with its banks to the effect that, with respect to all present or future loans
with such banks, the Company shall provide collateral (including sums on deposit with such banks) or guar-
antors immediately upon the bank's request and that any collateral furnished, pursuant to such agreements
or otherwise, will be applicable to all indebtedness to such banks.

At March 31, 2007, annual maturities on long-term debt during the next five years are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
DAL worererrrrrssierern i s w — —_
DOLL rerrrereseerasnremereans _ —_
4 b T O TP TS PR S P E P S P PSP R S PRI 110,000 932,203

8. Pension and Severance Plans

NEC Electronics Corporation and domestic subsidiaries have severance indemnity plans and non-cantributory
defined benefit pension plans, including cash balance pension plans. NEC Electronics Corporation and cer-
tain domestic subsidiaries previously had contributory defined benefit pension plans that included a govern-
mental welfare component which would otherwise be provided by the Japanese government.

Effective November 1, 2002, in connection with the corporation separation, the Company assumed
responsibility for pension and severance benefits for its active employees as of that date, located in Japan,
related to the severance indemnity plans and contributory defined benefit pension plans. The related plan
assets remained with the trusteed fund associated with NEC’s plans. In the consolidated financial state-
ments, benefit obligations are based upon the participant data for the Company's employees. Plan assets
were allocated based upon benefit obligations.,

NEC Electronics Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries have a “point-based benefits system,”
under which benefits are calculated based on accumulated points allocated to employees each year accord-
ing to their job classification and their performance.

NEC Electronics Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries have cash balance pension plans. Under
the cash balance pension plans, each participant has an account which is credited yearly based on the
current base rate of pay, their job classification and interest crediting rate calculated based on the market
interest rate.

Most foreign subsidiaries have various retirement plans covering substantially al! of their employees.
These plans are mainly defined contribution plans and also defined benefit plans. The funding policy for the
defined contribution plans is to annually contribute an amount equal to a certain percentage of the
participant's annual salary.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 effective March 31, 2007. The Company recognizes the difference
between projected benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Company also recognizes as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, prior service costs
and actuarial losses that arise during the period but are not recognized as components. of net periodic
benefit cost.

The incremental effects of applying SFAS No. 158 on the Company's consolidated balance sheet at March
31, 2007 are as follows:

Millions of yen

Before Application After Application

of SFAS No. 158 Adjustments  of SFAS No. 158

QOther Assets, Deferred tax @615 - -xrerrerrmm e ¥ 3,780 ¥ 112 ¥ 3,892
Accrued pension and Severance COSES -wwrwrmemrerrerarirerrrreees ({71,161) {(374) (71,535)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Joss) - eoreseeeeeeeees 15,675 262 15,937
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Thousands of U.S. doltars

Before Application After Application

of SFAS No. 158 Adjustments  of SFAS No. 158

Other Assets, Deferred tax @assets -« s sieas $ 32,034 S 949 $ 32,983
Accrued pension and Severance CoSsts rrrrr e, (603,059) (3,170) (606,229)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10Ss) - svemevrmsreeees 132,839 2,220 135,059

March 31 is the measurement date for the determination of the Company's henefit obligation for the major-
ity of its plans. Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of the benefit cbligations and the fair value
of the plan assets were as follows:

Theusands of

Millions of yen U.5. dellars
March 31 2006 2007 2007
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year .-, ¥132,343 ¥137,670 51,166,695
SEIVICE COSL ++errermrrssearerreintiinisssssesteasransnssasssssestanasasnassenserssssnasn 7,363 7,015 59,449
IFLEIESE COSE rrrerererretemmrmrsrririasiint et ssarattas s s e e st as s enas e s s be s 3,243 3,491 29,161
Actuaria| JOSS rrerenrararemse i s b 1,390 972 8'237
Benefits paid s e (3,500} (4,718) (39,958)
Plan amendment (3,169) -— —

Benefit obligations at end of year -+ 137,670 144,383 1,223,584

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ---------wvereerenes 53,879 61,571 521,788
ActUal retUrm On PIan @SSELS «-o--rrrrrearsrremesr i 1,369 184 1,559
Emplloyefs COﬂtﬂbUtIOr\S‘ 7'479 12,760 108‘136
Benefits paid {1,156) {1,504) {12,746)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year -, 61,571 73,011 618,737
FUNGEQ STATUS -+« eerrereetrmmrereranamsas ittt aseiie sttt in s ne e ¥{76,009) ¥(71,372) $ (604,847)

During the year ended March 31, 2007, as part of employer’s contributions, the Company contributed cer-
tain marketable equity securities to an employee retirement benefit trust. The securities held in the trust are
qualified as pian assets. The fair value of these securities at the time of contribution was ¥5,021 million
{$42,551 thousand). Upon contribution of these available-for-sale securities, a gross unrealized gain of
¥3,550 million ($30,085 thousand} was recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for the
year ended March 31, 2007.

Amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen

FUNTEA SEATUS v -emrererersstrrmmaermane st ettt bbb e ¥ (76,099)
Unrecognized pricr service cost* (23,917)
UnTecopnized AckUarial JoSe™ «u i s A5 708
Net aMOoUnts recognized « st ettt (54,308)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:

Accrued pension and SeVErance COSLS - «-«r- e, {75,761)

Accumulated other comprehensive {income) loss, before tax ---- 21,453
NEt amMOoUNts rECOGNIZEM «:- rereereesrrsrrs sttt ¥ (54,308)

{*) Unrecognized prior service cost and actuarial loss are amortized on the straignt-line method over the average remaining
service period of employees expected to receive benefits under the plan, which is 17 years for the years ended March
31, 2006.

24 NEC ELECTRONICS FINANCIAL REPORT 2007




Amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen LS. dollars
Amounts recorded to accumulated other
comprehensive (income) 1055, DEfOre Lax i e ¥ 23,200 $ 196,610
PrIOr SEIVICE COSE® teerertrtrimrmm ettt bbb b (22,155) (187,754)
ACTUAKIAL J0SG¥ «+rreerssssrtrariiatiniirirs ettt e 45,355 384,364
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:
OHET @SSO +-+errtrarerarrnrarr s s e s 163 1,382
Accrued PENSION And SEVETANECE COSGLS - wrmrrrtatsrr it (71,535) (606,229)
NEt SMOUNLS FECOBMIZEM -++vrevrseetrerssttrmm it sttt bbb e ¥(71,372) $(604,847)

(*) Unrecognized prior service cost and actuarial loss are amortized on the straight-fine method over the average remaining
service period of employees expected to receive benefits under the plan, which is 16 years for the year ended March
31, 2007.

The accumulated benefit obligations for all defined benefit pension plans was ¥137,332 million and
¥144,000 million ($1,220,415 thousand) as of March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The projected benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for pension plans with projected benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets, and the accumulated benefit obligations and the fair value of plan
assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets at March 31, 2006
and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 20086 2007 2007

Plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Projected henefit obligations ¥137,670 ¥142,277 $1,205,737

Fair value Of Plan @SSELS - 61,571 70,742 599,508
Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Accumulated benefit obligations -«--tovrererrsrismirn e 137,332 141,903 1,202,567

Fair value Of plan @sSets o cr s s 61,571 70,742 599,508

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at March 31, 2006 and 2007
were as follows:

March 31 2006 2007

DiSCOUNT FAtE rrererererermsrerer iy anenaees 25% 2_5%
Rate of increase in future compensation level 1.7% - 3.8% 2.4%-3.8%

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net pension and severance cost for the years ended
March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were as follows:

Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007
Discount rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Rate of increase in future compensation level s« ererrrirresseeaees 1.7%-3.8% 1.7%-3.8% 2.4%-3.8%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets - 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

The basis for determining the long-term rate of return on assets is a combination of historical returns and
prospective return assumptions derived from a combination of research and industry forecast.
The allocation for the plan assets at March 31, 2006 and 2007 was as follows:

March 31 : 2006 2007
Asset category
EQUILY SEOUTIES - reresersmrerese sttt s s 41% 37%
DEBt SEOUTITIES +--errrrmmmererrs st et oL st 36% 26%

23% 13%
— 24%

Short term investments
Others
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Target allocation of equity securities, debt securities short term investments and others is 35%, 30%, 10%
and 25%, respectively.

The Company’s objective is to secure the required tong-term total returns, whife taking allowable risks, to
ensure the payment of pension benefits, lump sum benefits at death, and other lump sum benefits to partici-
pants and annuitants, etc. in the future. The fund seeks to achieve the longterm investment retumns that exceed
the expected interest rate, which is required for the cash balance pension plan adopted by the Company.

To achieve the investment objective of the plan assets, the fund shall strive to select appropriate assets
for the eligible investment, establish the asset allocation policy, which is the optimum combination of
assets for the future in consideration of the expected rate of return and risk, etc. thereof, and maintain the
asset allocation through rebalancing, etc. Such asset allocation policy is established from a medium-to-long
term view of three to five years. The asset allocation policy is reviewed as necessary where the conditions
thereof changed from the time of establishment of the asset allocation policy.

Components of net pension and severance cost for all defined benefit plans in¢luding both the Company’s
and the employees’ contributory portion of such plans for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007
were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen L.S. dollars
Year encded March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007
Service cost ¥ 6,987 ¥ 7,363 ¥7,015 $ 59,449
!nterest CGSt .................................................................... 3‘333 3,243 3‘441 29,161
Expected return on plan assets ... (1,200} (1,426) {1,679) (14,229)
Amortization of unrecognized prior service Cogt - evrnen (1,759) {1,748) {1,762) (14,932)
Amortization of actuarial 1085 «---rr-rerereeer i 3,734 3,200 2,820 23,899
Amortization of untecognized net obligation at
April 1, 1989 being recognized over 17 years - 261 261 — —
Net pension and severance cost
for all defined benefit Plans - oerreem ¥11,356 ¥10,895 ¥ 9,835 $ 83,348

The estimated amounts of prior service cost and actuarial joss included in accumulated other comprehen-

sive (income) loss at March 31, 2007, that are expected to be amortized into net periodic benefit cost over

the next year are ¥1,800 million ($15,254 thousand) and ¥2,800 million {$23,729 thousand), respectively.
The total cost for all defined benefit and defined contribution plans was as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007

MNet pension and severance cost

for all defined benefit plans ¥11,356 ¥10,895 ¥ 9,835 $83,348

Cost for defined contribution plans -~ 704 975 875 7,415
Total cost for all defined benefit
and defined contribution plans -« ¥12 060 ¥11.870 ¥10,710 $90,763

The Company also contributes to multiemployer plans. The amount of contributions to multiemployer plans
for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were ¥86 million, ¥30 million, and ¥220 million
{$1,864 thousand), respectively. The costs for multiemployer plans were increased for the year ended
March 31, 2007 to improve the funded status of the pian.

The Company expects to contribute approximately ¥7,800 million ($66,102 thousand) to its pension
plans in fiscal year ending March 31, 2008,
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9. Income Taxes

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Thausands of

Year ending March 31 Milliens of yen U.S. dollars
OB -ereeeetetrarte st ¥ 4,700 $ 39,831
5,400 45,763
5,600 47,458
5,200 44,068
5,000 42,373
DEJLD = DT weoveveseessrssserbramar e m et se bR AR 27,700 234,746

The components of income (loss) before income taxes and the provision for income taxes were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. doflars

Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007
Income (loss) before income taxes:
NEC Electronics Corporation and

AOMESHC SUDSIHIATIES wovrrereerrrereresivrnsearaicrirenimsneniraees ¥ 8,864 ¥(54,165) ¥(42,547) 5(360,568)

Foreign subsidiaries 17,545 11,779 7,172 60,780

¥26,409 ¥(42,386) ¥(35,375) $(299,788)

Provision for income taxes:
Current:
NEC Electronics Corporation and

domestic subsidiaries ¥ 7461 ¥ 3,732 ¥ 453 § 3,839

Foreign subsidiarigs e 2,869 5,797 1,654 14,017
10,330 9,529 2,107 17,856
Deferred:
NEC Electronics Corporation and -
domestic subsidiari@s e (1,330} 50,186 3,962 33,576
Foreign subSIdIaries - 1,714 (3,549) (964) (8,169)
384 46,637 2,998 25,407

¥10,714 ¥ 56,166 ¥ 5105 § 43,263

The Company is subject to a number of different income taxes which, in the aggregate, result in a statutory tax
rate in Japan of approximately 40.5% for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007. A reconciliation
between the reported total income tax provision and the amount computed by multiplying the income (loss)
before income taxes by the statutory tax rate was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen .S, dollars
Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007
Expected tax provision (benefit) - e, ¥10,696 ¥(17,166) ¥(14,327) $(121,415)
Ingrease in taxes resulting from:
Changes in valuation allowange -« (1,209) 72,976 19,043 161,381
International tax rate differences o orremermeeeereeaneneene. (392) 834 770 6,525
Tax credit for research and development «werreeeemeeeee (373) — _ —
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries (271) (381) 12 102
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes ««:r e 1,503 259 223 1,890
[0 - LT 760 (356) (616) (5,220}
INCOME LAX PIOVISION «-rererrrrmrssssesniisinarinir i ¥10,714 ¥ 56,166 ¥ 5,105 $ 43,263
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The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2006 and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dellars

March 31 2006 2007 2007

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued pension and severance COsts - ¥ 29,844 ¥ 30,160 $ 255,593

Research and development COStS » e 11,728 12,637 107,093
ACCIUEH BORNUS -+roererrrrerir i 5,812 5,304 44,949
lnvestments ............................................................................... 2'073 3’131 26'534
[IVENLOTIES -+--sesereremrrmtrnestrasrarsarsmsererarsranessaseransnssatesssenssrsnsans 3,464 4,597 38,958
OpPErating 1085 CarmyfOrWards -« 24,760 36,124 306,136
DRREE -+ ersersessmtemmesmer et e st et s e et e b e 11,475 15,262 129,339
89,156 107,215 908,602

Less — valUGtion GIIOWENCE «+---crirrrrimmriiinminiiiin e reenreerennsirarssins (74,555) (95,499) (809,314)
TORAl wverereerensentimie st rm s r st et ¥ 14601 ¥ 11,716 $ 99,288

Deferred tax liabilities:

Tax deductible reserves ¥ 7,948 ¥ 2,420 $ 20,509

Marketab[e Securiﬂes ................................................................ 3'916 1‘646 13,949
Tax on undistributed earnings « - -, 3,566 5,589 47,364
Gain on securities contributed to employee
retirement benefit trust — 1,438 12,186
OLHEE rroemmremerenearmnenaensannas 813 796 6,746
0 7= 1T U U ST ¥ 16,243 ¥ 11,889 $ 100,754

The valuation allowance is primarily related to deferred tax assets of NEC Electronics Corporation and its
domestic subsidiaries for which there is uncertainty regarding realization. The net changes in the total valua-
tion allowance for the year ended March 31, 2005 was a decrease of ¥1,369 million. For the years ended
March 31, 2006 and 2007, the net changes in the total valuation allowance were an increase of ¥70,838
million and ¥20,944 million ($177,492 thousand}, respectively.

The tax benefits of operating loss carryforwards utilized for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007 were ¥6,504 million, ¥3,891 million, and ¥2,931 million {$24,839 thousand), respectively.

At March 31, 2007, the Company had operating loss carryforwards amounting to ¥113,630 million
($962,966 thousand) of which ¥102,171 million ($865_,856 thousand} relate to NEC Electronics Corpora-
tion and its domestic subsidiaries, and will expire during the period from 2013 through 2014, The remainder
of ¥11,459 million ($97,110 thousand) relates to foreign subsidiaries with no expiration date.

10. Shareholders’ Equity

28

(1) Retained eamings

The Japanese Company Law provides that an amount equal to 10% of distributions from retained earnings
paid by NEC Electronics Corporation and domestic subsidiaries be appropriated as a legal reserve. No fur-
ther appropriation is required when the total amount of additional paid-in capital and the legal reserve
equals 25% of the stated capital. The Japanese Company Law also provides that the additional paid-in
capital and the legal reserve are available for appropriations by the resolution of the shareholders.

The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under the Japanese Company Law Is calculated
based on the amount recerded in NEC Electronics Corporation’s financial information prepared in accor-
dance with generally accepted accounting principles in Japan. The amount was ¥158,700 million
($1,344,915 thousand) as of March 31, 2007.

At the June 27, 2006 shareholders' meeting of NEC Efectronics Corporation, the shareholders approved a
proposal to reclassify additional paid-in capital in the amount of ¥84,618 million ($717,102 thousand) to
eliminate for the accumutated deficit under the former Japanese Commercial Code. Such adjustment was
not recorded for purpose of accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America,
because it did not meet all of the requirements associated with accounting for quasi-reorganizations.
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{2) Other comprehensive iIncome (loss)

Change in accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) was ‘as foltows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars

Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Balance at beginning of year --rerrmecesncnee. ¥ 1,696 ¥ 2,956 ¥ 7,713 § 65,363

Change in the current period - 1,260 4,757 2,789 23,636

Balance at end of year - ¥ 2956 ¥ 7,713 ¥10,502 S 88,999
Minimum pensien liability adjustment:

Balance at beginning of year - ¥(21,831) ¥(16,040) ¥{14,797) $(125,398)

Change in the current period -« 5,791 1,243 {878} (7,441)

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158 ---orevereeeees — —_ 15,675 132,839

Balance at end of year - vt ¥(16,040) ¥(14,797) ¥ — $ —_
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities:

Balance al beginning of year - veeeneenn ¥ 28957 ¥ 3,450 ¥ 5,754 § 48,763

Change in the current period - 493 2,304 {3,336) (28,271)

Balance at end of year e ¥ 3460 ¥ 5,754 ¥ 2,418 $ 20,492
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:

Balance at beginning of year - e ¥ 21 ¥ 26 ¥ 12) $ {102}

Change in the CUrrent Period « v e {5) (38) 12 102

Balance at end Of YEar -« -« s erreraemm s ¥ 26 ¥ 12y ¥ —_ S —_
Pension liability adjustment:

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158 - ¥ — — ¥(15,937) $(135,059)

Balance at €nd of year - oo ¥ . —  ¥{15,937) $(135,059)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Balance at beginning of ygar e ¥(17,147) ¥ (9,608) ¥ (1,342) $ (11,374)

Change in the current periad -« -rrereerenimnnne. 7,539 8,266 {1,413) (11,974)

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158 --roreeeveens — — (262) (2,220)

Balance at end of year -t ¥ (9,608) ¥ (1,342) ¥ (3,017) §$ (25,568)

The tax effect allocated to the change in each component of other comprehensive income (loss) was as follows:

Millions of yen

Before-tax (expense}?): Net-of-tax
Year ended March 31 amaount benefit amount
2005:
Foreign currency transiation adjustments «reeresseermne ¥1,260 ¥ — ¥1,260
Minimum pension liability adjustment - e 7,713 (1,922) 5,791
Unrealized gains {losses) on marketabile securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during periog -« 454 {184} 270
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized
N NEt INCOME ([OSS) -rererrerrsrnerar i 376 (153) 223
Unrealized gains (losses} on derivative financial instruments:
Net changes in fair value of derivative financial instrumentsg -« {75} 27 {48)
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized
IN NEt INCOME {I0SS) +wxrerrsesrerererrirrirari sttt 67 (24} 43
Other cOMPrehensive iNCOME (JOSSG) -+« e errererermrie i ¥Q 795 ¥(2,256) ¥7,539
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Millions of yen

Before-tax (expense-)rz: Net-of-tax
Year ended March 31 amount benefit amount
2006:
Foreign currency transiation adjustments -« ¥ 4 757 ¥ — ¥ 4,757
Minimum pension liability adjustment -« 1.565 (322) 1,243
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securlties:
Unrealized holding gains arising during period - o 3,694 (1,496) 2,198
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized
iN NEL INCOME (JOSS) ++rrrrerrrrerasrermsinmste st e 178 (72) 106
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:
Net changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments -+ 30 {11) 19
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized
iN NEL INCOME (J0SS) - rerrerererrrermr et et (89) 32 (57)
Other comprehensive inCome (Jogs) rv - --orrmmmiiniai ¥10,135 ¥(1,869) ¥ 8,266
2007:
Foreign currency translation adjustments «oe e ¥ 2,789 ¥ —  ¥2,789
Minimum pension liability adjustment «--- e, {1,373) 495 (878)
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising guring period -« 730 (296} 434
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized
iN NEL INCOME (JOSS) r+rererrerenriratisririiss et s (6,336} 2,566 (3’770)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:
Net changes in fair value of derivative financiat instruments -« 17 (6} 11
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized
in Net iNComMe (I0§S) «+ e rermermimsennernees 2 (1) 1

Other comprehensive income {loss) -+ ¥(4,171) ¥ 2,758 ¥(1,413)

Thousands of U.S. doflars

Before-tax (expense-)rz): Net-of-tax
Year ended March 31 amount benefit amount
2007:
Foreign currency translation adjustments e e, $ 23,636 $ — 523,636
Minimum pension liability adjustment -, (11,636) 4,195 {7,441)
Unrealized gains {losses) on marketable securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising gduring period o 6,186 (2,508) 3,678
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized
iN NEL INCOME {JOSS) r+rrerrermreermsienin i (53,695) 21,746 (31,949)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:
Net changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments -+~ 144 (51) 93
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized
iN NEt INCOME (IOSS) <=+ =rrrrriimiarimr s e 17 (8) ]
Other comprehensive INCOME (JOSS) ««wrerererirmmm e $(35,348) $23,374 $(11,974)

11. Stock Compensation Plan

The Company has several Plans approved by the shareholders under which options were granted to direc-
tors, corporate officers and certain upper-tevel employees to purchase shares of common stock. In principle,
the options will be vested after two years from the date of grant under the condition that option holders will
be employed by the Company at the date of exercising the option.

The terms of the options are subject to adjustment if there is a share split or consolidation of shares. The
Plans provide that options generally lapse automatically at termination of service before the exercise date
and generally remain exercisable for one year after termination of service during the exercise period.
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The options granted during the year ended March 31, 2007 are exercisable over a period of four years
commencing two years after the date of grant.
The stock option activity for the year ended March 31, 2007 was as follows:

Weighted-
average
Number remaining
of Weighted-average contractual Aggregate
shares exercise price term intrinsic value
U.s. Millions Thousands of
Year ended March 31, 2007 Shares Yen dollars Years of yen U.S. doltars
Qutstanding at beginning of year ««-weee-ee —_— —_ —
Granted ¥3,927 $33.28
Excised — —_
Forfeited _ —_
Expired —_ —
Outstanding at end of year - 75,000 3,927 33.28 5.3 - —
Vested and expected to vest
at end of 2-r- | EUUETI LI I TR 72’150 3'927 33.28 5.3 —_ J—

Exercisat”e at end of year ....................... ——— J— J— — J— —

The options granted on or before March 31, 2006 were vested under the condition that the Company
achieves certain targets and are exercisable over a period of two years commencing two years after the date
of grant. All of the stock options which were granted during the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006
have expired at the end of the fiscal year because the performance target was not achieved.

The stock option activity for the year ended March 31, 2007, for stocks granted on or before March 31,
2006, was as follows:

Weighted-
average
Number remaining
of Weighted-average coniractual Aggregate
shares exercise price term intrinsic value
.5, Millions Thousands of
Year ended March 31, 2007 Shares Yen doliars Years of yen U.S. dollars
Outstanding at beginning of year -« 291,500 ¥8,990 $76.19
Granted - oo —_— —_— J—
EXCISEQ «+--verereseerarerasmemssssnanissisisinenanerane - — —
Forfeited ----- —_ — —_
EXPIF@Q -+ veerrererersrssasinenininnisien e (59,500) 8,990 76.19
Qutstanding at end of year oo 232,000 8,990 76.19 0.5 —_ —
Vested and expected to vest
at end of YA v et 232,000 8,990 76.19 0.5 —_ —
Exercisable at end of year ---orerereneees 232,000 8,990 76.19 0.5 —_ —

The weighted-average fair value per option at the date of grant during the years ended March 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007 was ¥1,885, ¥875 and ¥937 {$7.94), respectively. The compensation expense is based
on the grant-date fair value estimated. The fair value of options granted is estimated using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions. The fair value of options
granted on or before March 31, 2006 is calculated in a similar manner.

Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007
Expected life 3 years 3 years 4 years
Expected VOIALility »o--xexsrerr 46.80% 42.30% 39.40%
Expected dividend s 0.31% 0.47% 0.22%
Risk-free interest rate - v 0.34% 016% 1_09%

The expected life is calculated by the simplified method using vesting term and contractual term of the options.
The computation of expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The com-
putation of risk-free interest rate is based on the long-term rate of return on Japanese Government Bonds.

NEC ELECTRONICS FINANCIAL REPORT 2007 31




The Company recognized ¥468 million, ¥203 million and ¥25 million {$212 thousand) of compensation
expense for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. As of March 31, 2007,
approximately ¥43 million ($364 thousand) of total unrecognized compensation expense related to stock
options is expected to be recognized on the straight-line methed over 1.3 years.

1.2. Net Income {Loss) Per Share

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations for net income (loss)
was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007
Net income (IOSS) T N ¥16'031 ¥(98'198) ¥(41,500) 3(351’695)
2005 2006 2007
Year ended March 31 Number of shares
Weighted-average number of shares of
COMMON StOCK outstanding e 123 499,336 123,499,052 123,498,823
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convenime BOTSG rovemremrmer e 9'761’588 —_— —
Weighted-average number of shares of diluted
common stock Outstanding ............................................. 133.260'924 1239499r052 123'498'823
Yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2005 2008 2007 2007

Net income (loss) per share
Basic -+ ¥129.81 ¥(795.13) ¥(336.04) 5(2.85)
DHIULET - reveerrmrrrrererimmmmrmiirrinaeeare e s sbanrcrienessseresieses 120,30 (795.13) (336.04) (2.85)

Certain stock options and convertible bonds are not included in the computation of diluted net income (loss)
per share for the pericds presented since the inclusion would be antidilutive. The number of shares with the
potential to have a dilutive effect on net income (loss) per share in the future is as follows:

2005 2006 2007
Year ended March 31 Number of shares
Conver“b'e BONAS -vrrreremrr s J— 11'156'100 11’156'100
Stock options ................................................................... 302'500 291,500 307‘000

13. Related Parties

In the normal course of business, the Company purchases components, supplies, and services from and
sells its products to NEC and NEC's affiliates. The Company purchases and leases machinery and equip-
ment from NEC and NEC's affiliates. The Company accesses NEC's laboratories and utilizes NEC's research
on fundamental technologies. NEC allocates any expenses related to such basic research for each period.
NEC Logistics, Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of NEC, provides the Company with its logistics services,
including packing, coordination of product transportation, and inventory management, and charges a fee.
NEC manages financing activities geographically through its financing subsidiaries. When the Company had
an excess of funds, it provided the funds to NEC's financing subsidiaries and received interest of 0.66% ~
3.75%, 1.75% ~ 4.50% and 2.25% ~ 5.09% for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respec-
tively. The funds provided are included in loans receivable from related party. The Company has entered into
a multi year agreement with NEC under which NEC serves as prime contractor for the implementation of the
Company’s new global information management system. At March 31, 2006 and 2007, ¥18,799 million
and ¥16,335 million ($128,432 thousand) of software and hardware were included in property, plant and
equipment, respectively, and ¥1,947 million, ¥2,833 million and ¥2,277 million ($19,297 thousand) of
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expenses related to the implementation of the system have been charged to income for the years ended
March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. NEC has granted the Company the right to use the letters
“NEC" as part of its trade name and to use the “NEC” mark as its trademark and corporate mark pursuant
to a brand name license agreement, In this connection, NEC charges a brand fee to the Company based on
a percentage of sales. In addition, NEC Electronics Corporation has forward exchange contracts with NEC.
NEC has alse provided advertising and other administrative services to the Company. The accompanying
consolidated statements of operations included the expenses related to these services. The Company pur-
chased certain machinery and equipment from a subsidiary of NEC for the year ended March 31, 2006.
Since this purchase was a transaction among entities under common control, the Company accounted for
this transaction as capital transaction, and recorded a decrease of ¥1,974 million in additional paid-in capi-
tal. As discussed in Note 1, NEC's semiconductor business operations were transferred to the Company.
Under the terms of the separation arrangements, any subsequent income tax benefits derived from the
assets and liabilities relating to the general-purpose DRAM business {which were not transferred at the
corporate separation) are reported as capital transactions. Accordingly, income tax benefits of ¥891 miilion
and ¥6,092 million are reported as an increase of additional paid-in capital for the years ended March 31,
2005 and 2008, respectively.

As discussed in Note 19, the settlement fee for DRAM class actions and others, which were determined
by the arrangement with NEC, were ¥1,638 million and ¥3,222 million ($27,305 thousand) for the years
ended March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. And the Company paid these amounts to the claimants, or
indirectly through NEC.

Transactions with related parties for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were as follows:

Millions of yen

NEC's

Year ended March 31, 2005 NEC affiliates Total
¥ 9,550 ¥64,236 ¥73,826

Purchases of compenents, SUpPlies, and ServiCes ««« - e 3,056 70,760 73,818
Purchases of machinery and equipment « -« -eeeeemeenmenn 10,987 25,686 36,673
Shipping and handling GOt - i —_ 8,129 8,129
LEESE PAYIMIBNT -+rrrerereresrrsmmri ettt s e 4,036 5,272 9,308
Research and developmEnt « - e 8,665 6,579 15,244
AGVETTISING COBE ---revresssesimmsniiniiet e —_ 32 32
BranGd B +-vevevrerrrerarermreemttmtiiiniiaiisaie st et rs e s e s e 2,682 — 2,682
Other selling, general and administrative oo 8,840 10,648 19,488
Fees for forward eXChange CONMIAGES -« ereeererrrrer s miiisisininsiiies 15 — 15
INLETESE INCOMIE «+rrerreeerererrnrarari sttt s sttt et se s e e — A8 48
Sublease rentals reCaIPt -« - r e rrermrssis e —_ 311 311
Millions of yen

NEC's

Year ended March 31, 2006 NEC affiliates Total
SR coverererermeearrtre e r e r e st ¥7,201 ¥54,231 ¥61,432
Purchases of components, supplies, and services - 3,824 59,113 62,937
Purchases of machinery and equipment - ---cwxwrremermmenensiains 6,972 7,965 14,937
Shlpplﬂg and hand“ng COSE e —_ 7'907 7'907
LEASE PAYITIENE ++rereresrsrssamsrnstss sttt st sttt o s 4,926 4,073 8,000
Research and devEIOPIMENE v rrrrs trsssstessnnts e 6,318 8,730 15,048
AQVEIHISINE GOSE «eerersrrmrrrersrerrrsra et — 17 17
Brangd B ----e-reetererseraratitiimiiitiimini s s 4,255 —_ 4,255
Other selling, general and administrative e 9,165 10,390 19,555
INEETESET NGOG <+ +rmererrerseratmre et st bbb b — 76 76
SUbIEASE reNtals FECEIPL - wrererres st — 231 231
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Milliens of yen

NEC's

Year ended March 31, 2007 NEC affiliates Total

¥6,216 ¥43,776 ¥49,992
Purchases of components, supplies, and Senviges -« 3,868 43,808 47,676
Purchases of machinery and eqUIPMENE = s, 3,456 6,328 9,784
Shipping and handling COSt -« e —_ 9,783 9,783
Lease payment 5175 3,323 8,498
Research and development ---- -« ot 5,635 13,981 19,616
AQVErISING COSE - - e - 12 12
Brand fBe «---c-rererreerrersrmttitit i e 4,620 — 4,620
Other selling, general and administrative -, 5,409 11,083 16,492
INEErEGE TGO -+ v v merrmrrreerem ettt e s s e b s — 114 114
Sublease rentals FECEiPt -+ e —_— 192 192

Thousands of U.5. dollars

NEC's
Year ended March 31, 2007 NEC affiliates Total
T T T OO SONON $52,678 $370,983 $423,661
Purchases of components, supplies, and semvices - 32,780 371,254 404,034
Purchases of machinery and equipment e, 29,288 53,627 82,915
Shipping and handling GOSt -+ e — 82,907 82,907
Lease payment ................................................................................. 43‘356 23’161 72'017
Research and develOpIMENt -« -« trrserrieerinmmnsneaeirs s 47,754 118,483 166,237
AQVEIISING COSE ++vererrereresesesse sttt ettt — 102 102
Brand fE@ v rerererrmrnrmere e e 39,153 —_ 39,153
Other selling, general and administrative - 45,839 93,924 139,763
Interest income ................................................................................. — 966 966
Sublease rentals receipt -« e —_ 1,627 1,627

14. Financial Instruments

34

{1) Falr value of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable, trade, loans receiv-
able from related party, short-term borrowings, notes and accounts payable, trade, accounts payable,
other and accrued expenses, accrued income taxes and other current assets and liabilities approxi-
mated fair value because of their short-term maturities. The carrying amounts and the estimated fair
value of long-term debt, including current portion, forward exchange contracts and interest rate swap
agreements at March 31, 2006 and 2007 were summarized as follows;

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2007 2007

Canying Estimated Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

March 31 amount fair value amount fair value amount fair value

Long-term debt,
including current portion -+ ¥(133,656) ¥(119,273) ¥{126,548) ¥{117,352) $(1,072,440) $(994,508)
Forward exchange

CONIACLS - roremeereessesereenees (428) (428) 157 157 1,331 1,331
Interest rate swap
BErEEMENLS -rrrrrereriimerane (16) (16) {13) {(13) (110) (110)

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated using market quotes, or where market quotes are not avail-
able, using estimated discounted future cash flows. The carrying amounts and the estimated fair value
of investments were disclosed in Note 4, The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated by
obtaining quotes for futures contracts with similar maturities. The fair value of interest rate agreement is
estimated based on estimated discounted net future cash flows.
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" (2) Derlvative financial instruments
The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates. The Company has policies and procedures for risk management and
the approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative financial instruments, The Company's policies pro-
hibit hotding or issuing derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Forward exchange contracts

NEC Electronics Corporation and its certain subsidiaries have forward exchange contracts with financing
subsidiaries of NEC or financial institutions to offset the adverse impact of fluctuations in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies arising from the
Company’s operating activities. Such forward exchange contracts are not designated as hedging instru-
ments under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Headging Activities, and changes
in fair value of forward exchange contracts are recognized in income, thereby effectively offsetting the
remeasurement of the assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The related receivable or
payable is included in other current assets or other current liabilities.

A certain subsidiary has entered into forward exchange contracts, which are designated as hedging
instruments for forecasted transactions. Such forward exchange contracts are desighated as a cash flow
hedge and, accordingly, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss Is initially reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and subseguently reclassified into earn-
ings when the forecasted transactions effect earnings, and the ineffective portion of the gain or loss is
reported in earnings immediately. At March 31, 2007, there are no forward exchange contracts qualify-
ing as a cash flow hedge.

Interest rate swap agreements

The Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage interest rate risk exposure
associated with underlying debt. Certain interest rate swap agreements are designated as a fair value
hedge. The interest rate swap agreements utilized by the Company effectively modify the Company's
fixed-rate debt to a floating rate for the next year. The agreements involve the receipt of fixed rate
amounts In exchange for floating rate interest payments over the life of the agreements without an
exchange of the underlying principal amount.

There were no significant gains or losses on derivative financial instruments or portions thereof that
were either ineffective as hedges, excluded from assessment of hedge effectiveness, or where the
underlying risk did not occur for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

The counterparties to the Company’s derivative transactions are financing subsidiaries of NEC or
major financial institutions. As a normal business risk, the Company is exposed to credit loss in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparties, however, the Company does not anticipate nonperfor-
mance by the counterparties to these agreements, and no material losses are expected.

15. Securitization of Receivables

The Company had several securitization programs under which certain trade receivables were sold, without
recourse, to SPEs and others. In certain securitizations, the Company had retained a subordinated interest,

The Company serviced, administered and collected the securitized trade receivables on behalf of the SPEs
and others and the costs and fees of servicing, administrating and collecting were not significant. For the
years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, the Company had recorded losses of ¥98 million and ¥18 million
related to the securitization transactions.

Expected credit loss and discount rate used in measuring the fair value of retained interests at the sale
date of the securitization transactions completed during the year ended March 31, 2005 and 2006 were

as follows:
Year ended March 31 2005 2006
Expected cred|t IOSS ..................................................................................................... 0_0% 0.0%

Discount rate
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A summary of cash flows received from SPEs and others for all securitization activities that occurred in the
years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006 was as follows:

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31 2005 2006
Proceeds from new SeCuUrtization e e ¥56,699 ¥37'734
Cash flows received on retained INTErests ~« -« sere e ini e 10,690 8,283

16. Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expenses amounted to ¥1,075 million,
¥1,082 millicn and ¥944 million ($8,000 thousand} for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007, respectively.

1.7. Restructuring Charges

During the year ended March 31, 20086, the Company announced a series of restructuring programs consisting
closing a prototype line in Japan and a manufacturing plant in Irefand. As a result, the Company recognized
restructuring charges of ¥1,683 miltion and ¥4,192 million ($35,525 thousand) for the years ended March
31, 2006 and 2007, respectively, and the cumulative amount incurred to March 31, 2007 is ¥5,875 million
{$49,788 thousand). For the year ended March 31, 2006, the charges consisted of personne! costs of
¥1,010 million, accelerated depreciation of equipment of ¥669 million, and other costs of ¥4 million. For
the year ended March 31, 2007, the charges consisted of personnel costs of ¥2,375 million ($20,127
thousand), accelerated depreciation of equipment of ¥1,258 million {$10,661 thousand), contract termina-
tion costs of ¥413 million ($3,500 thousand), and other costs of ¥146 million {$1,237 thousand). During
the year ended March 31, 2008, the Company had paid other costs of ¥4 million. At March 31, 2006,
personnel costs of ¥1,010 million were unpaid. During the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company had
paid personnel costs of ¥3,385 million ($28,686 thousand), contract termination costs of ¥413 million
($3,500 thousand), and other costs of ¥47 million ($398 thousand). The Company had paid all of the
restructuring costs by March 31, 2007.

18. Leasing Arrangements

36

The Company leases c¢ertain land, buildings, facilities and equipment for its own use.

The gross amounts of leased assets under capital lease which are leased from NEC, included in build-
ings, were ¥7,207 million ($61,076 thousand) at March 31, 2006 and 2007. Accumulated depreciation
of the leased assets at March 31, 2006 and 2007 was ¥2,761 million and ¥3,090 million {$26,186
thousand), respectively. In addition, the gross amounts of leased assets under capital leases, the major-
ity of which is from NEC Leasing Ltd., included in machinery and equipment, were ¥3,790 millien and
¥3,121 million ($26,449 thousand) at March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Accumulated depreciation
of the leased assets at March 31, 2006 and 2007 was ¥1,701 million and ¥2,137 million {($18,110
thousand), respectively.
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The following is a schedule by year of the future minimum lease payments under capital leases together
with the present value of the net minimum lease payments at March 31, 2007

Thousands of

Year ending March 31: Millions of yen U.S. dollars
749 6,348
525 4,449
443 3,754
329 2,788
D013 ANG THEIEAFLEE +--re-sversessresrersraresrersiasserastie e rar st s resea st s e as s s sms s n et aabenas 3,644 30,881
Total MinNiMuUm [EASE PAYMENTS «rrrrerer e bt 7.309 61,941
Less - amount representing INEEFEST +eerersmererrrsrineaiis s s sy rmb e e ee e {1,436) (12.169)
Present value of net minimum lease PAYMENLS «+rvtemsrissrinimnir e 5,873 49,772
LSS — QUITENE OBIIZALIGN <o erereeererr it (1,080) {9,153)
LONZ-LETM [EASE ODIEALION ++rersrrsersrrrissssritrstress st ¥ 4,793 $ 40,619

Rental expense under operating leases was ¥26,598 million, ¥34,798 million and ¥34,342 million ($291,034
thousand} for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The rental expense for the
years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 included the rental expense of ¥8,416 million, ¥7,799 million
and ¥7,425 million ($62,924 thousand) under operating leases with NEC's affiliates, respectively.

Sublease rentals received for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were ¥369 million, ¥363
million and ¥306 million ($2,593 thousand), respectively. The sublease rentals received for the years ended
March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 included the sublease rentals received of ¥311 million, ¥231 million and
¥192 million {$1,627 thousand) with NEC's affiliates, respectively,

During the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Company executed sale and lease back
agreements for certain machinery and equipment at their net book values. The proceeds were ¥44,480
million, ¥52,247 million and ¥38,555 million ($326,737 thousand), respectively, and the fease terms are
all less than 5 years. The leases are being accounted for as operating leases.

Certain leases require additional payments based on production volume. Contingent rentals under the
leasing agreements were ¥128 million, ¥4,875 million and ¥6,592 million {($55,864 thousand) for the years
ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The Company has several leasing agreements for machinery and equipment which are accounted for as
operating leases. Certain of these lease agreements provide for purchase options or renewal options. In
addition, under the ieasing agreements, the Company is obligated to guarantee the residual value of
machinery and equipment when the Company returns such machinery and equipment at the end of tease
term. At March 31, 2007, the maximum amount of the recognized residual value guarantee was approxi-
mately ¥24,700 million {$209,322 thousand) and the lease term was one year to five years.

Future minimum rental payments pursuant to operating leases are as follows:

Thousands of
Year ending March 31: Millions of yen 1.S. doltars

¥24,281 $205,771
21,384 181,220
18,674 158,254

7,110 60,254
2,810 23,814
699 5,924
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19. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Commitments outstanding at March 31, 2007 for the purchase of property, pfant and equipment approxi-
mated ¥15,200 million ($128,814 thousand).

The Company conducts business activity on a global scale. Such business activities, from time to time, may
involve legal actions, claims or other disputes. Although there are various matters pending at any one time,
management is of the opinion that settlement of all such matters pending at March 31, 2007 would not have
a material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operation, except for the following:

NEC Electronics America, Inc. has been named as one of the defendants in numerous class action civil
antitrust lawsuits from direct purchasers {customers who had directly purchased DRAM from the Company in
the past) seeking damages for alleged antitrust violations in the DRAM industry. Although these class action
lawsuits are expected to be resolved by settlement, NEC Electronics America, Inc. is still in litigation, or in
settlement negotiations along with NEC, with several customers who have opted out of such class action
lawsuits. NEC Electronics America, Inc. has also been named as one of the defendants in numerous class
action civil lawsuits from indirect purchasers (customers who had purchased products containing DRAM), as
well as a number of antitrust lawsuits filed by the Attorneys General of numerous states in the U.S,

Additionally, the Company, together with NEC, is fully cooperating with the European Commission in its
investigation of potential violations of European competition laws in the DRAM industry.

Furthermore, the Company is alsc subject to (1) investigations in connection with potential antitrust viola-
tions in the SRAM industry being conducted by the U.S. Department of Justice and the European Commis-
sfon, (2) investigations in connection with potential antitrust violations in the semiconductor industry by the
Korea Fair Trade Commission, as well as (3) investigations by the U.S. Department of Justice, the European
Commission, the Korea Fair Trade Commission, and the Competition Bureau of Canada in connection with
potential antitrust violations in the thinfilm transistor liquid crystal display (TFT-LCD) industry. Following the
initiation of investigations by the U.S, Department of Justice into the SRAM and TFT-LCD industries, numer-
ous class action civil antitrust lawsuits seeking damages for alleged antitrust viclations have been brought
against NEC Electronics America, Inc. in the U.S. and elsewhere.

Although the outcome of the aforementiened investigations, antitrust lawsuits and settlement negotia-
tions is not known at this time, the Company has recorded the probable and reasonably estimable losses in
the amount of approximately ¥3,200 million ($27,119 thousand} as “Accounts payable, other and accrued
expenses” for the U.S. DRAM civil fawsuits and settlements with customers in the U.5. No accrual is made
for contingent losses from the other aforementioned civil lawsuits and investigations by authorities, because
litigation is inherently uncertain and difficult to predict and the amount of losses cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time.

20. Segment Information

The operating segment of the Company is only the semiconductor business, exctuding those related to the
general-purpose DRAM business.

Sales to external customers by market application for the years ended March 31, 2005, 20086 and 2007
were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen L.5, dollars

Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007
¥138.010 ¥107,995 ¥ 99,641 § 844415

140,941 126,581 123,714 1,048,424
101,278 102,639 120,757 1,023,364

COMIMUNICALIONS «--vvvrerrermrrermmnmasarerennas
Computing and Peripheralg -------
Consumer EleCtronics - «-xxxweee

Automotive and Industrial ----«o-ve 102,784 103,780 108,097 899,127
Multi-market ICg - rvrereremniniinn, 78'575 69,449 88,961 753'907
Discrete, Optical and Microwave Devices - 118,172 108,701 120,563 1,021,720
ORI ot ssssreminestesrne e ne e e ere e see e net et me e e 28,254 26,818 32,547 275,823

¥708,014 ¥645,963 ¥692,280 55,866,780
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Sales, which are attributed to geographic areas based on the country location of the Company that trans-
acted the sale with the external customer, geographic profit (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007 and long-lived assets at March 31, 2006 and 2007 were as follows. Although the disclo-
sure of geographic profit (loss) is not required under accounting principtes generally accepted in the United
States of America, the Company discloses this information as supplemental information due to the disclo-

sure requirements in Japan.

Thousanrds of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2005 2006 2007 2007
Net sales:
JAPAN -eresererreee s . ¥407,646 ¥352,875 ¥377,298 $3,197,441
United States of America - . 79,453 76,860 67,458 571,678
EUTQPE --+rrerererrressssstrssasars st e 79,946 72,961 88,908 753,458
140,969 143,267 158,616 1,344,203
¥708,014 ¥645,963 ¥692,280 $5,866,780
JAPEN s reereeasimint ¥ 12,597 ¥ (51,074) ¥ (38,877) 5 (329,466)
United States of America 9,650 7,999 (1,006) (8,525)
Europe 1,851 20 100 847
G eoererenremerer e e e e 9,078 7,366 11,226 95,136
TOUA| 1+ reereremmsmseermssmmenesnsie s en et sissies st sesn s ¥ 33,176 ¥ (35.689) ¥ (28,557) $ (242,008)
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.5. dollars
March 31 20086 2007 2007
Long-lived assets:
YT T ¥D83 255 ¥260,662 $2,209,000
United States of America 4,643 11,671 98,907
Eurcope 2,959 1,687 14,297
AAST@ +rrereererararir i e 23,718 29,043 246,127
TOLE| +verersereresseivmsreneimesanereste st rt et et s e ten s e b eb s bbb s ¥314,575 ¥303,063 $2,568,331

Sales to NEC and NEC's affiliates accounted for 10%, 10% and 7% of total sales for the years ended March
31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. In addition, the Company sells a significant portion of its sem-
iconductor products through a network of independent sales distributors. The Company relies on six key
distributors for 60%, 60% and 62% of total sales for the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. At March 31, 2006 and 2007, the Company had accounts receivable, trade of ¥50,993 million
and ¥43,740 million ($370,678 thousand), respectively, from these distributors. In addition, at March 31,
2006 and 2007, the Company had guarantee deposits received of ¥1,530 million ($12,966 thousand),

from these distributors as collateral.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

& ERNST & YOUNG SHINNIHON & Tel: 033503 1191

i’l ERNST & YOUNG Hibiya Kokusai Bidg, Fax: 03 3503 1277

2-2-3, Uchisaiwai-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tekyo, Japan 100-0011
C.P.O. Box 1196, Tokya, Japan 100-8641

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
NEC Electronics Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NEC Electronics
Corporation (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2006 and 2007, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2007, all expressed in Japanese yen. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. 'We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. 'We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of NEC Electronics Corporation at March 31, 2006 and
2007, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We have also reviewed the translation of the financial statements mentioned above into

United States dollars on the basis described in Note 3. In our opinion, such statements have
been translated on such basis.

Gt s Gy ik

June 27, 2007
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NEC ELECTRONICS AT A GLANCE
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Applications

Mobile handsets
Broadband networking
eguipment

Routers

Mobile phone base

stations

Computers
Servers
Workstations
Computing peripherals
Rewritable DVD drives
Printers
LCDs for PCs

Digital consumer electronics

Digital cameras

DVD recorders

Digital televisions
Home appliances
Game consoles

Automobiles
Engine
Body controi
Airbags
Car audios
Industrial
Factory automation

Wide range of electronics
equipment

Wide range of electronics
equipment

Major Products

System LSlIs

Driver ICs for small TFT-LCDs

System memories

System LSIs
Microcontrollers

Driver ICs for large TFT-LCDs

System LSIs
Microcontrollers

Microcontrollers
System LSIs

General-purpose
microcontrollers

Gate arrays
General-purpose system
memaories

Diodes

Transistors

QOptical semiconductors
Migrowave semiconductors

Percentage of Fiscal 2007
Semiconductor Sales

18.3%

16.1%

G 13.4%

18.3%




Net Sales (¥ Billion)
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Trends in the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007

Sales of semiconductors for mobile phones decreased year on
year. Sales of LCD driver ICs increased due to the proliferation
of handsets featuring high-definition TFT-LCD displays, on
which the company is focusing its efforts, but this was offset
by a large year-on-year fall in sales of system memaory for
mobile phones.

Sales of semiconductors for PC peripherals fell year on year.
Sales of LCD driver ICs for LCD televisions and computer moni-
tors were boosted by an increase in market share, but this was
outweighed hy a drop in sales of semiconductors for printers
and recordable DVD drives, resulting in a net decrease.

Sales of semiconductors for game consoles recorded a signifi-
cant year-on-year increase, the result of commencing sales of
chips for a new game console. This was coupled with increased
sales of semiconductors for products such as digital cameras
and digital televisions driven by the expansion of the digital
consumer electronics market.

Sales of automotive semiconductors increased during the fiscal
year as more semiconductors are used in vehicles due to the
greater application of electronics in cars.

Sales of general-purpose microcontrollers increased sharply due
te an upturn in the market coupled with higher sales of All
Flash microcontrollers.

Sales of discrete semiconductors increased mainly due to a
market recovery.

Customers*

Nokia, Panasonic Mobile
Communications,

Samsung Electronics, Sharp,
NEC

AUO, Canon, Hitachi,

HP, LG.PHILIPS LCD,

Pioneer, Samsung Electronics,
Seiko Epson, NEC

Canon, Casio Computer,

Fuji Filem, LG Electronics,
Matsushita Electric Industrial,
Nintendo, Pioneer,

Samsung Electronics,

Sanyp Electric, Sharp, Sony

Advantest, Delphi,
DENSQ, Fanuc, Pioneer,
Robert Bosch,
Siemens, Toyota,
Yaskawa Electric

LG Electronics,
Matsushita Electric industrial,
Sony, NEC

Sony, NEC

* The list of customers is neither comprehensive nor necessarily representative.
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LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, growth in the semiconductor market began to taper off
from the summer of 2006. In particular, monthly semiconductor sales, excluding DRAM, slowed year
on year from the latter half of the fiscal year. Semiconductor sales in Japan were sluggish, especially
around the start of the new year, due to saturation of the mobile phone market and falling prices for
digital consumer electronics.

In this business climate, we posted consolidated net sales of ¥692.3 billion ($5,867 million), up
¥46.3 billion ($393 million) over the previous year. In addition to the start of semiconductor ship-
menis for new game consoles, this growth largely reflected solid sales growth for automotive semicon-
ductors and increased sales of All Flash microcontroliers.

Despite an increase in sales, we posted a loss before income taxes of ¥35.4 billion {$300 million)
and a net loss of ¥41.5 billion ($352 million). These losses were largely the result of price declines for
our main products as competitive pressures intensified, combined with increased R&D expenses aimed
at driving future sales growth. Another contributory factor was one-time expenses for structural reforms.

On a positive note, we took steps during the year to create strong products with world-class com-
petitiveness. Among our achievemnents was the start of mass production and shipments of system
LSIs for game consoles featuring our cutting-edge embedded DRAM technology, and graphics-
processing LSis, which were incorporated into large LCD televisions. On the development front, we
commercialized cutting-edge miniaturization technology designed for the 55-nanometer generation,
together with a highly advanced and unique process technology. We began taking orders for ASIC
{application specific integrated circuit) products based on this technotogy. On the sales front, we
moved to bolster sales in China by boosting our sales force and pursuing other measures to establish
a stronger foothold in the country. In addition, we established NEC Electronics Korea Ltd., helping in
the push to strengthen our sales framework to expand sales in the rapidly growing Asian markets.
As for manufacturing, we worked to augment manufacturing capacity at the NEC Yamagata's 300-mm
wafer line, ultimately raising monthly output fram 6,000 to 13,000 wafers. With this, the 300-mm line
dedicated to logic circuit production is now in a position to leverage the cost competitiveness afforded
by this higher output.

During the year under review, we announced a new management policy with measures for achieving

a recovery in business performance. These include improving R&D efficiency and increasing sales by
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MISSION STATTEMENT

NEC Electronics aims to be the partner |
of choice by providing differentiated
semiconductor solutions based on

advanced technologies that give our
customers a competitive advantage.

NEC Electronics believes that raising customer satisfaction levels leads to

increased sales and improved profitability, enhancing both enterprise and

shareholder value. To this end, it operates and develops business in line
with the following policies.

() Ensure all business activities focus on the needs of the customer,
and deliver solutions tailored to meet customer needs and excellent
product quality, increasing sales and earnings through improved
customer satisfaction.

(J Focus on the company’s three core areas of SoC (system on chip),
microcomputers, and discrete semiconductors. Develop business
processes for each business unit, while promoting re-use of core
technologies and resources, to address various customer needs with high-
quality and low-cost solutions, thus achieving steady growth and profits.

O Leverage the company’s position as an international player to connect
with customers, aggressively pursue global business opportunities, and

expand sales. /

concentrating product development resources in focus areas; lowering manufacturing costs by reorga-

nizing manufacturing operations; and restructuring the organization by product types and realigning
sales, development and manufacturing, accordingly. Through these initiatives, we will build a resilient
business structure able to generate profits even in an adverse semiconductor market. We are commit-
ted to attaining “EIGYQ profit”* in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008, through more efficient
operations, most notably through a reduction in fixed costs.

Every one of us at NEC Electronics stands firmly committed to the bold steps necessary to regain
the confidence of our stakeholders. | respectfully ask for your understanding, guidance and continued

support as we move forward in this endeavor.

* “EIGYQ profit” is presented as net sales less cost of sales, research and development expenses, and selling, general and
administrative expenses, which is equivalent to operating profit in financial reporting practices generally accepted in Japan.

7"4'/ /% e

Toshio Nakajima
President and CEQ, NEC Electronics Corporation
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AN INTERVIEW WITH PRESIDENT NAKAJIMA

QUESTION

What is the key point of
the new management §
policy announced in s
February 20077 The point of the new policy is to set out measures in building a strong business
structure, one capable of sales and profit growth even in adverse market condi-
tions. We anticipate that in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2010, marked as the
final year for the structural reforms we announced, the semiconductor market is
likely to hit another downswing in the silicon cycle. Ordinarily, we would expect this
to be a tough time to grow sales and profits, However, the goal of the structural reforms is to estab-
lish a business structure that can ook forward to sales and profit growth that outpaces the market for
that year. Three initiatives will help make this possible. -

First, we have heavily invested R&D resources in SoC (System on Chip) business, so in this area we
have clarified what our key businesses are. We will concentrate scattered development resources in
fields that can showcase our strengths, namely automotive and digital consumer products.

Second, we will conduct an extensive review of our manufacturing operations, with an eye to sup-
porting business expansion particularly in the key fields mentioned earlier. Our first task is to boost
production capacity by integrating and consolidating fabrication lines in Japan, while at the same time
cutting manufacturing costs. Where assembly and testing are concerned, we are accelerating the shift
to overseas production as we work to build a manufacturing framework with a greater emphasis on
cost competitiveness.

Third, we realigned our organizational structure. Instead of divisions based on functions such as
sales, development, and manufacturing as in the past, our organization is aligned by product types, such
as SoC, microcomputers, and discrete and IC. These changes will result in & system that clarifies opera-
tional accountability and duties, which will enable us to quicken the pace of structural reforms.

These initiatives are the first step towards spurring a recovery in business performance. We know
that conditions in the semiconductor market will continue to change rapidly. That is why our goals are
to fully implement the initiatives to achieve a swift turnaround in performance, and to strive for
sustainable profit growth. Meeting these aims will enable us to stay abreast of market changes and
to build a business base capable of sales and profit growth,
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QUESTION

In your view, what are

NEC Electronics’

strengths, and how will NSWE

they lead to growth? NEC Electronics' strengths lie in semiconductors for automotive applications, a
field that demands high quality and reliability, and in semiconductors for digital
consumer products. In the latter, we have a wide range of customers, and our
semiconductors can be found in a diverse array of products.

In semiconductors for automotive applications, our greatest asset is quality,
which has earned us a high share in automotive microcentroller applications. Looking ahead, we hope
to further expand not only automotive microcontroller sales but also sales in non-microcontroller prod-
uct areas. For example, we are working to boost sales in car navigation and other information and
safety fields, and in power devices which connect microgontrallers and machinery.

As for semiconductars for digital consumer products, one goal is to garner a larger market share by
capitalizing on NEC Electronics’ advanced graphics processing technology. We want to bolster our
system for business expansion particularly in digital television, targeting the Chinese market where

future growth is anticipated.
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QUESTION

What initiatives will you

enact to attain “EIGYOQ

profit”* in fiscal 20087 N SWE R
Let me first say that | and every other member of our management team stand fully
committed to ending the current fiscal year in the black on an “EIGYQ profit”* basis.
To this end, | have changed our approach from a conventional focus on improving
profitability on higher sales, to reinforcing our cost structure. As a first step, we set
out to cut fixed costs by ¥20 billion ($169 million) compared with the year ended

March 31, 2007, by focusing particularly on reducing capital expenditures and R&D expenses. We are

also beginning to streamline our product lines and executing a more product-centered manufacturing
operation. These steps should trim manufacturing costs.

QUESTION

Lastly, what kind of

company do you envisage

NEC Electronics will he? ANSWER
First and foremost, | strongly believe that retaining long-term business opportuni-
ties through a reliable and continuous supply to our customers with differentiated
solutions, together with improvements in our management structure, will enable
us to maximize corporate value.

As a first step, we will achieve “EIGYO profit”* for the fiscal year ending March
2008, and will build a resilient management structure that remains profitable even
during the downswing of the silicon cycle.

My vision is to shape NEC Electronics into a company that meets and exceeds the expectations of

all of our stakeholders, from shareholders and investors, customers, business partners, the local

community, to our employees.

I
|
- - - d

* "EIGYO profit” is presented as net sales less cost of sales, research and development expenses, and selling, general and
administrative expenses, which is equivalent to operating profit in financial reporting practices generally accepted in Japan.
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THREE BUSINESS UNITS BOLSTTERING
NEC EUECTRONICS

NEC Electronics has shifted from an organizational structure by
functions such as sales, development and manufacturing, to
one supported by three product-driven business units: SoC
(System on Chip), Microcomputer, and Discrete and IC.

For greater business efficiency, each business unit is respon-
sible for its product planning and designing to create unique
features for key products, and operates businesses overseeing
everything from sales and development to manufacturing.

Discrete and IC
Business Unit
Display drivers

Analog ICs
Discrete

Compound @ 5)
semiconductor A)

devices

March 31, 2007:

: 659 L] 7 billio,

{$5,591 million)

Microcomputer
Business Unit

2%

Microcontrollers
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SoC (System on Chip)
Business Unit

Sales from the SoC Business Unit comprised
approximately 39% of semiconductor sales in

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Both the

ASSP {application specific standard product)

and ASIC (application specific integrated circuit}

businesses are part of this business unit.

The unit is largely focused on the digital con-
sumer area. In particular, the unit strives to
speed the development and achieve the timely
launch of appealing products that combine NEC
Electronics’ strengths in graphics-processing
technology and low power consumption.

Some of the core products are the EMMA
series of graphics-processing system LSlIs for
digital consumer eiectronics, system LSIs for
printers and digital cameras, and chips for game
consoles. During the past fiscal year, mass pro-
duction and shipments commenced for system
LSt chips featuring NEC Electronics’ embedded
DRAM (eDRAM) process technology, adopted by
Nintendo Co., Ltd. for use in its innovative Wii
game console. The fiscal year also saw the
steady launch of other products grounded in
our distinctive technologies, such as EMMA

E e

Wii®
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SoC (system ;on chip) refers to system LSIs that deliver the
distinctive features and performance of our customers’
products. At the SoC Business Unit, we provide a host of
technologies! In addition to voice- and graphics-processing
technologies; there is our embedded DRAM technology,
capable of méximizing graphics performance for games and
other applicaiions, and our proven, world-class low-power
consumptlon!devlce and circuit technologies in the N703iu
mobile phone handset in Japan. With these and other
technologies,% my goal is to create a “No.1 or Only One”
product, the kind of world-leading LSis that will be
indispensab!é to our customers’ products, as well as to
society and the marketplace.

Looking ahfead, we will reduce time to market through
integrated soiftware and hardware development, and taunch
highly competitive products on a timely basis. Furthermore,
we will accelerate business growth with proposals founded
on a global p:erspective.

Zensuke]Matsudal
Executive Vice President
and Head of the SoC Business Unit

J

series LSIs for graphics-
processing systems in large-
screen digital televisions.

Most of these products
are manufactured at NEC
Yamagata, the Group’s most
advanced manufacturing
site. NEC Electronics has
made commercially viable
the miniaturization technol-
ogy for the 55-nanometer
generation together with
highly advanced and unigue
process technology. In January 2007, we began
accepting orders for ASICs based on this tech-
nclogy, which consume 40% less power than
previous S0-nanometer generation products.
With the development of embedded DRAM tech-
nology incorporating this 55-nanometer process
already complete, NEC Yamagata is now prepar-
ing for mass production.

Going forward, the SoC Business Unit will
continue to create highly competitive products
in today’'s global market as it works to expand
business, especially in the digital consumer
market in Asia, with particular focus on the
rapidly growing Chinese market.

Enhanced MultiMedia Atchiteciure — )

Note: Wii is a registered trademark of Nintendo in Japan




Microcomputer
Business Unit

Sales from the Microcomputer Business Unit
comprised approximately 26% of semiconductor
sales in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
Main businesses include general-purpose
microcontrollers and microcontrollers for auto-
motive applications.

In general-purpose microcontrollers, the unit
focuses on flash microcontrolliers which customers
can readily reprogram as needed. Already, these
products are found in a wide range of applications,
including horne electronics, AV equipment, and
industrial machinery, The fiscal year under review
in particular saw the unit executing development of
ali new products based on flash microcontrollers
for general-purpose microcontroller products, re-
sulting in expansion of the All Flash product lineup.
By Aprii 2007, some 300 preducts had already
been released for the unit's broad lineup of B-bit
to 32-bit products.

As for automotive microcontrollers, the unit
boasts a high market share of products for body
control and car audio applications. Many custom-
ers have also given high marks to the unit's
microcontrollers for dashboard and safety applica-
tions. Furthermore, the unit began mass production
and shipments of IMAPCAR, an LSI for enboard

Lineup of All Flash microcontrollers
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(Koytes)
1024 [
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Microcomputers are the “brains” embedded in a wide
variety of electronic devices. Particularly In automoblles,
where each vehicle can have dozens of microcomputers In
use, these devices are helping to improve fuel efficiency
and safety. 1 believe that by raising the performance and
the quality of microcomputers even higher and ensuring a
reliable supply, we can contribute to making our soclety a
more comfortable and prosperous one.
NEC Electronics’ microcomputer business is truly global.
We ship roughly 60% of our products outside of Japan, and
boast a global share of more than 10% in this area. We will
continue to leverage All Flash microcomputers In a bid to \
further expand business in automoblle and general-purpose
applications, and lead NEC Electronics in mounting a
turnaround in business performance.

Noichilvanol

Executive Vice President
and Head of Microcomputer Business Unit

image recognition developed in collabo-
ration with NEC Corporation, Toyota
Motor Corporation, and Denso Corpora-
tion. Utilizing highly advanced parallel
processing technology, IMAPCAR allows
for realtime image processing, enabling
automobile manufacturers and automo-
tive electrical compenent manufacturers
to easily implement safety mechanisms
and collision prevention systems.

On the manufacturing front, the unit
moved to further enhance supply stabil-
ity by shifting to a “multifab™ mass pro-
duction system, with NEC Electronics America's
Roseville fab now joining NEC Kyushu in the produc-
tion of automotive microcontrollers.

NEC Electronics is also actively pur-
suing multi-core microcontrollers. These
products, featuring both high perfor-
mance and low power consumption, are
expected to become a key technology in
years to come. Leveraging a wide prod-
uct lineup and stable supply, the unit
will deliver microcontrollers that support
customer competitiveness, while pro-
moting the development of tomorrow's
leading products.

IAMMAPCAR Image
rendering for 3-D
obfect detection

‘\i... .
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Discrete and IC
Business Unit

Sales from the Discrete and IC Business Unit
accounted for approximately 35% of semiconduc-
tor sales in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2007. The unit is largely comprised of businesses
such as display drivers, analog ICs, discrete and
compound semiconductor devices.

In display drivers, the unit responded to evolution-
ary advances in mobile device performance with the
development of driver ICs for small LCDs equipped
with Mobile AGCPS*, a technology that achieves
low power consumption while enabling terrestrial
digitat and other broadcasts to be viewed in high
video quality. In step with the widespread uptake of
LCD televisions and greater picture quality, the unit
commercialized products featuring PPmL*2 in driver
ICs for large LCD displays. This newly developed
high-speed interface is perfect for full high-definition
screens and achieves higher refresh rates. Cutting-
edge technologies of this kind are enabling NEC
Electronics to maintain its high market share.

In discrete semiconductors, the unit commercial-
ized a large volume output Power MOSFET (metal
oxide semiconductor field-effect transistor) for
automotive electrical systems, one of NEC Elec-
tronics’ focus areas. Created in response to the
increasing use and sophistication of electronic
automotive systems in recent years, which has

Fuil HD-compatible Display Driver IC
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Semiconductors that comprise the Discrete and IC
Business Unit are widely used as components support-
ing functions in many electronic devices. While they are
mostly general purpose in nature, | focus on develop-
ment aimed at producing the world’s leading products
by taking advantage of NEC Electronics’ unique
strengths In each and every one of our products.

Going forward, as we strive to raise the market
competitiveness by creating products at the forefront
of meeting customer needs, we will quicken the pace
of rigorous cost-cutting measures to play our role as a
core profit base for NEC Electronics.

\Yoshikazullnadal
Executive Vice President
and Head of the Discrete and IC Business Unit

spurred the need for high elec-
tric current systems, this world-
class Power MOSFET features
low on-state resistance coupled
with a high level of reliability.

In compound semiconductor ‘ 1
products, the market has ac-
knowledged the unit’s advanced
technological capabiiities proven
from the commercialization of RF
and microwave devices, such as
data switches, power amplifiers and low-noise ampli-
fiers widely used for wireless LANs, and adopted as
reference designs for prominent wireless LAN
chipset venders.

In response to sharp falls in LCD driver IC prices
in recent years, the unit is constructing manufactur-
ing process lines dedicated to LCD drivers. The unit
continues to accelerate costcutting measures such
as those mentioned eartier, launch cost-competitive
products and further reinforce the LCD driver busi-
ness. The Discrete and IC Business Unit will also
push forward with steady improvements in manufac-
turing efficiency for discrete semiconductors, analog
IC, and compound semiconductor device businesses
to contribute to NEC Electronics’ earnings base.

Automotive MOSFET

*! Auto Gamma Conlrol and Power Saving
*2 Point to Point mini-LVDS (Low Voltage Differential Signaling}
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OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

Sales Breakdown by Application

U ®m Communicatlons 14.4+

Computing and Peripherals 17.9%

_/ NetSales O Consumer Electronics 17.4%

¥692.3 vition W Automotive and Industrial 15.3%
(55,867 miliion)

N O Multi-market ICs 12.9%

G Discrete, Optical and Microwave Devices 17.4%

£ Other 4. 7%

The global economy fared well in the first half of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, but signs of a
downturn emerged during the second half. In the United States, policy interest rate caps led to a slow-
down in housing investment, while in Asia there were inventory adjustments for IT equipment and LCD
panels. Despite a steady rise in domestic demand in Europe and Japan, foreign demand began to
decline in the second half, leading to a slowdown in these economies.

As with the global economy, growth in the semiconductor market began to taper off from the sum-
mer of 20086. In particular, monthly semiconductor sales, excluding DRAM, slowed year on year
from the latter half of the fiscal year. Particularly in Asia, semiconductor sales volumes continued to
increase, driven by the uptake of mobile phones in emerging economies, but on a monetary basis
growth was flat as unit prices fell. Semiconductor sales in Japan were sluggish, especially around the
start of the new year, due to saturation of the mobile phone market and falling prices for digital con-
sumer electronics.

Consolidated net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 were ¥692.3 billion ($5.867 million),
up ¥46.3 billion (7.2%) from the previous fiscal year. Although the Communications and the Comput-
ing and Peripherals categories lagged from lower sales of system memory for mobile phones and
semiconductors for PC peripherals, this was offset by large gains in the Consumer Electronics
category due to revenue for a new game console and higher sales of semiconductors for digital
televisions, as well as expanded sales of All flash microcontrollers in the Multi-market IC category.

Improvement of consolidated loss before income taxes was limited, as it decreased ¥7.0 billion
($59 miflion) to ¥35.4 billion ($300 million). Despite higher sales year on year, R&D expenses and
investments to boost production capacity increased, while Group-wide cost reduction measures were
unable to keep pace with price erosion. Another contributory factor was the one-time expense for
structural reforms, including costs related to the consolidation of development projects.

Consolidated net loss improved ¥56.7 billion ($480 million) year on year, to ¥41.5 billion ($352
million). This was mainly due to the recording of a large sum of a valuation allowance against deferred
tax assets for NEC Electronics Corporation and domestic subsidiaries in the previous fiscal year
ended March 2006.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

NEC Electronics recognizes that it is essential to build a solid relationship of trust and cooperation
with all of our stakeholders. When we listed on the stock market in July 2003, we committed to a
transparent and trustworthy style of management and have been working hard to ensure it ever since,
In order to thoroughly implement this philosophy, we established the NEC Electronics Guiding Prin-
ciples in June 2004 to promote management guidelines for CSR promotion at NEC Electronics and its
subsidiaries, making our position on CSR known within and outside the company. Each and every
executive and employee pledges to share the spirit of the Guiding Principles and join together in a
concerted effort to promote CSR.

NEC]Electronics! —J
@Iﬁiﬁif:% O Customer Focus

To provide optimized solutions and comprehensive support that

At NEC Electronics, we are dedicated to culti- exceed the highest expectations of our customers and earn their
vating trust with every individual and organi- unwavering loyaity.

zation, including customers, shareholders,
investers, trading partners and employees.
We pledge to conduct our business with
integrity, beyond legal compliance, by acting
responsibly as concerned corporate citizens,
while providing superior semiconductor {1 Community Involvement

solutions based on advanced technologies. To implement activities which contribute to both local and inter-
national communities, white respecting the history, culture, and
human rights of each region.

O Ethical Business Practices
To promote free and fair market competition through transparent
and ethical business practices, which are conveyed to the public
through our actions and communications.

NEC Electronics Is committed to the
following Guiding Principles.

O Environmental Protection
To promote sustainable development by minimizing the environ-

14

mental impact of our products throughout their entire life cycles.

8 Corporate Culture
To foster a corporate culture that respects individuality and
encourages innovation, where all employees are proud to be part
of the NEC Electronics team.

chaired by the President of NEC Electronics, which deliberates important issues concerning CSR

promotion within the company. We have also set up 19 articles for CSR promotion and divisions
responsible for each article to drive the company's CSR activities forward.

NEC Electronics believes that a safe, healthy work environment free of discrimination angd harassment

is essential in bringing out each employee’s individuality and capabilities to the fullest extent. All
employees at NEC Electronics piay a role in building a corporate culture we take pride in. We undertake
measures such as promoting awareness of human rights issues, as well as family-friendly workplace
initiatives to enhance work and family life, and measures to promote mental health management. We
enacted additional revisions to our family-friendly efforts this year.

NEC ELECTRONICS ANNUAL REPORT 2007



At NEC Electronics, we believe it is our mission as a company to provide optimal solutions that satisfy
our customers. “it's all for the customer's success” is the core objective for our efforts to improve
customer satisfaction. For example, we conduct surveys to determine CS levels in order to reflect
feedback from customers in the products and services we provide. Additionally, every organization of
the NEC Electronics Group has acquired 150 9001 and 1S0/T5169489 certification for quality manage-
ment systems, and carries out continual improvements to quality management at each stage of prod-

uct design, manufacture, and support.

SrenE g relkivnsiips with e wdng paies

NEC Electronics strives to maintain and improve mutual understanding and strong relationships of
trust with purchasing and sales business partners. To this end, we issue a set of CSR Guidelines that
specify tasks we would like our purchasing partners to undertake from the standpoint of CSR. Addi-
tionally, we regularly hold top executive meetings with sales partner companies, and support their

sales representative training activities in order to further build stronger relationships with our partners.

T

NEC Electronics is involved in environmental conservation activities globally as well as in local com-

munities. For that purpose, we have developed systems and a cuiture in the company that makes it
easier for employees to participate in volunteer activities. For instance, because the semiconductor
manufacturing process requires immense volumes of water, since 2005, NEC Electronics has taken
part in a local water-source forest protection project in Japan: “Kanagawa Water-Source Forest
Creation Project”. Here, NEC Electronics employees are participating in nature preservation events
such as brush clearing and other volunteer activities. As a contribution to local communities, NEC
Electronics also held an electronic industrial arts class for local elementary school students on the

NEC Electronics bases environmental management policies on contributing to the conservation of the

applications of microcontrollers.

global environment in the course of our business activities in the semiconductor industry. There are
three pillars that support our environmental activities: 1) We produce eco-products by incorporating
environmental considerations into the entire product life cycle from the design and development
stages; 2) We aim to reduce greenhouse gas emissions which cause global warming and to cut back
hazardous chemical substances as a part of our eco-factory effort; and 3} We offer environmental
education programs that raise employees’ awareness of environmental issues, and disclose informa-

tion on our eco-activities to the public.

* Please refer to the NEC Electronics CSR Repert 2007 and Environ-
ment Management Report 2007, both of which are due out in
August 2007, for more details.
http://www.necet.com/csr/en
http:/ /www.necel.com/eco/en
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

F[mdz:lmental Corporate G'ovem'ance Pbiicy

0 In recognition of the fact that, in addition to efficient execution of management, assurance of
sound and transparent management is essential to continuously increasing its corporate value,
NEC Electronics is committed to improve its management structure and to implement measures
toward further strengthening its corporate governance.

0 NEC Electronics has adopted the corporate auditor system for its corporate governance, and has a
corporate governance structure with the Board of Corporate Auditors that monitors the actions of
NEC Electronics’ directors in the business execution of their duties. NEC Electronics believes that
its audit structure for corporate governance is sufficiently functional, through full-time auditors, who
can effectively obtain high guality information from relevant divisions using their knowledge and
understanding of the business, while the meetings of the Board of Corporate Auditors, which
includes parttime auditors, conduct analysis of the information,

O The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a month to discuss and offer proposals
and recommendations involving corporate governance issues and other important corporate gover-
nance policies.

Corporate Governance Measures .

NEC Electronics’ Governance Structures

1. The Beard of Directors is composed of eight directors (including three outside directors) for
faster and more efficient management. Of the three outside directors, one is a management
consuitant, and two are executives in NEC Corporation, the parent company of NEC Electronics.

2. The Board of Corporate Auditors is composed of four corporate auditors, including three outside
corporate auditors. Of the three outside corporate auditors, one has judicial experience and two
come from NEC Corporation, the parent company of NEC Electronics, one of these being
executive from accounting. The Board of Corporate Auditors establishes audit policies and holds
auditors’ meetings. At the meetings, corporate auditors exchange information and deliberate on
each corporate auditor's audit status. The Board also receives regular reports from independent
auditors on their audit services and exchanges viewpoints on them.

3. NEC Electronics has introduced the Corporate Officer System to clarify responsibilities for conduct-
ing business operations and for quick decision-making in the execution of business activities.

Basic Policy Regarding the Internal Control System
NEC Electronics has decided basic policies for the establishment of the Internal Control System
such as those described below, and implements them.
1. Compliance framework

(J NEC Electronics has adopted the NEC Electronics Guiding Principles and the NEC Electronics
Group Code of Conduct to establish corporate ethics and ensure compliance policies through-
out the NEC Electronics Group. Directors and corporate officers take the lead in putting these
principles into practice. Simultanecusly, the Legal Division carries out practical activities to
keep officers and employees informed about these principles, while the Intemal Auditing
Division audits the actual state of compliance impiementation.

C Major compliance-related issues are deliberated and decided by the CSR Promotion Committee.
The compliance promotion system, awareness-raising programs and other fundamental
issues, meanwhile, are ensured under its fundamental company regulation regarding com-
pliance, the NEC Electronics Group Compliance Program. In addition to these compliance
measures, NEC Electronics has set up help lines for the NEC Electronics Group and its
business partners to report compliance violation issues.
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2. Information management framework

O NEC Electronics properly prepares, saves and manages various documents pertaining to
business operations based on legaf regulations and the company’s own fundamental regula-
tion rules regarding document management. Trade secrets and personal information are both
properly and strictly managed in accordance with the company's own fundamental regulations
regarding the management and protection of these types of information.

] The fundamental issues pertaining to the management and security of information are deliber-
ated by the Information Management and Security Committee. The Information Management
and Security Committee also continuously carries out measures for maintaining and improving
information security based on the company's own pertinent fundamental regulations.

3. Risk management framework

) NEC Electronics is establishing a risk management framework in line with the company’s
own fundamental regulations devised regarding risk management. These rules classify
companywide management risks, designate the corporate officers and the division respon-
sible for each classified risk category, and other fundamental issues. Each responsible corpo-
rate officer and division is charged with devising and carrying out measures to prevent their
specific category of risk from materializing, as well as preparing countermeasures in case of
the actual materialization of risks. Matters of particular importance to the company's risk
management are placed on the Board of Directors’ agenda following prior discussion by the
Executive Committee.

O When serious risks materialize, NEC Electronics sets up a Crisis Countermeasures Commit-
tee or Emergency Headquarters to respond to the situation in accordance with the particular
category of risk involved.

4. Framework for ensuring effective executlon of business activities

O The Executive Committee discusses issues of importance to the company's management
prior to a meeting of the Board of Directors in order to enhance the Board's deliberations.
Furthermore, authority is properly transferred from directors to corporate officers and other
employees by office routine regulations, decision-making and authorization procedure
regulations and other pertinent fundamental regulations.

5. The NEC Electronics Group’s internal control system

O Important matters concerning business operations of NEC Electronics Group’s Japan-based
subsidiaries are approved at each subsidiary's General Meeting of Shareholders. NEC
Electronics makes the decision based on its own assessment of the seriousness of the
issue being decided, then exercises its shareholder's rights.

[J The company's responsible divisions oversee the routine management of subsidiaries based
on NEC Electronics Guiding Principles and the NEC Electronics Group Code of Conduct. Evalua-
tion, maintenance and improvement of NEC Electronics Group’s internal control systems over
financial reporting are performed in accordance with the U.S. Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

O Examinations of subsidiaries are performed by the corporate auditors and the Internal Audit-
ing Division in cooperation with the subsidiaries’ own corporate auditors and internal auditing
staff members.

6 Corporate auditors’ auditing framework

O NEC Electronics has established a Corporate Auditors Office composed of specialized staff
members that assist the corporate auditors’ audit activities. The company also bears the
cost of obtaining expert advice from outside specialists when the Board of Corporate Auditors
requires such for its audits.
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O Corporate auditors receive reports as needed from directors and other officers regarding the
status of business execution, as well as regular reports, depending on the specific duty, from
general managers of divisions such as the Internal Auditing Division, Legal Division and
Accounting Division.

(O Corporate auditors may attend all important company meetings as they deem necessary, and
are guaranteed a right to access to all critical corporate information, including the inspection
of important authorization documents such as the minutes, decision records and other docu-
ments of important meetings.

O Regular meetings are held to provide the corporate auditors and directors with the opportunity
to exchange viewpoints.

Internal Audits and Audit of Financial Statements

1. Internal audits
Internal audits are perfoermed by the Internal Auditing Division, which is supervised by the
President of NEC Electronics. Specifically, the division serves as an autonomous third party for
investigating and evaluating other parts of the management organization, including divisions
responsible for business operation units, corporate staff, consclidated subsidiaries and other
areas. This is carried out from a compliance, risk management and interna! control perspective.
The division also proposes concrete measures for rectifying or improving problems that arise.

2. Audit of financial statements
Independent Auditors who performed NEC Electronics' audit were Kazuya Oki, Kivomi Nakayama,
and Kazuhiro Ishiguro, partners of Ernst & Young ShinNihon. The audit team included certified
public accountants and junior accountants, as well as other specialists.

General Meeting of Shareholders

l appointment/removal appointment/removal lappointment/removal
T -, : report
' Board of Directors - \I,
(8 Directors) audit . : report Independent Auditors
«—— ~—

: (3 outside directors) Board of Corporate Auditors € oamron—>

4 Corporate Auditors
(3 outside auditors)

appointment/removal/ Corporate Auditors
monitor ) A . _ Office report
laudit audit cooperation cooperation
.
appointment/ - ¥ F
removal President and CEOQ € oot ‘ " |~ C€SR Promotion Committee
> Internal Auditing
: | Instruction Division
; | Corporate Governance
Executive Committee Committee
(Discussion of key items)
| tnformation Management &
A 4 | ] Security Committee
audit
9 Corporate Officers
(inci. concurrent directors) e Crisls Countermeasures
(Business operation}) —  Committee
i Emergency Headquarters
W W

Business Operation Units, Corporate Staff and Subsidiarles

(As of July 1, 2007)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

NEC Electronics Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31. 2006 and 2007

Mitlions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

ASSETS 2006 2007 2007
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ««+eeoeterrmmiririei e ¥ 211,080 ¥ 185,372 $ 1,570,949
Notes and accounts receivable, trade:
Rel8ted Party = -+ - s et 13,604 11,793 99,941
Other .......................................................................................................... 100'975 88'313 748,415
Allowance for doubtful notes and ACCOUNLS -+ -« xrrrrrrrrrmreacermrrrrrr e (729} (563} (4,771)
Loans receivable from related Party -+ 2928 1 8
INVENLOTIES wvevrrrrrersresrrrmmimunsretrtrriatatar s aa s s e r s rr s s e s e e e s s anan e s e ene 72,525 82,573 699,771
Deferred tax @SGELS «r oot e st 6,178 6,795 57,585
Prepaid expenses and other Current @ssets - e 9,529 7,330 62,119
TOtal CUTTENT ASGELG - v rerrer e m ettt ta bt 413'370 381’614 3,234,017
Investments:
MaArketable SECUMLIES «xrrr-rrrrrecremrrrr e et e 13,901 5,997 50,822
Investments, other:
Affiliated COMPANIES <+ rrrrreerrrirss it — 746 6,322
ONEE ++rrrrmrerrrrersarseremrnrs e isiss s s s r e s s s s r e e ae s e rs e s et e s e s e e e 1,696 411 3,483
15,597 7.154 60,627
Property, plant and equipment:
Land ............................................................................................................... 17,365 16'849 142,788
BUIIINGS ~+reeverrrarrrrr s s e s e 243,976 244,852 2,075,017
Machinery and GUIPIMENT < 954,969 965,005 8,178,009
CONSIIUCLION IN PIOBFESS «+rroerrosrsrr st arta ettt s 19,189 15,421 130,686
1,235,499 1,242,127 10,526,500
Accumutated depreciation - e {933,374) {949,304) (8,044,949)
302,125 292,823 2,481,551
Other assets:
Deferred tAX GSSELE ++rrrr-r trter ottt ittt ittt tsee s st aaese st rerasnanes 1,739 3,892 32,983
License fees and Other intangib|es ................................................................ 11'596 9’357 79,297
UL = G PP PP 854 1,046 8,864
14,189 14,295 121,144
¥ 745,281 ¥ 695,886 $ 5,897,339
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Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHCLDERS' EQUITY 2006 2007 2007
Current liabilities:
Short.term borrowings .................................................................................... ¥ 7,201 ¥ 3‘609 s 30'585
Current portion of [ONGAEIM debt «voveer et 6,471 15,914 134,864
Current portion of obligation under capital leases to related party - -«.cooeeeees 1,402 1,080 9,153
Notes and accounts payable, trade:
Re[ated party .............................................................................................. 27‘705 31'198 264’390
(02T T LT T T T T T P EEE 95,234 101,269 858,212
Accounts payable, other and accrued expenses:
REIGLEM DALy r+r-s-rsrerarremresrs s e 4,201 4,649 39,398
[0 11T LT R T T T P e P P PR T PP LT PP PP 53'839 53,651 454'669
Accrued income BANEG r v rrrerere s mt sttt et et b 3.770 2,792 23'661
Other current ||ab|||t|es ................................................................................... 11,071 8,798 74'560
Tota| current ||ab,||t|es ............................................................................ 210,894 222,960 1,889'492
Long-term liabilitles:
Long_term dEbt ............................................................................................... 127'185 110'634 937'576
Obligation under capital leases to related party ««------oreersmmmm e 6,050 4,793 40,619
Accrued Pension and SEVEIANCE COSLS « e sttt 75,761 71,535 606,229
Deferred tax Iiabi|ities .................................................................................... 9'559 10'847 91,924
L0 3= S RPN 3,459 5,214 44,186
222,014 203,023 1,720,534
Minority shareholders’ equity in consolidated substdlaries --------------omeeeereeeees 4,122 4,835 40,974
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock:
Authorized — 400,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 123,500,000 shargs -+-----rorerermrrrmissnanenainn 85,955 85,955 728,432
Additional paid-in CaPItal r-++rrrerreererrrmie s 281,014 281,039 2,381,687
Accumulated defiGit o (57,369) (98,901) (838,144)
Accumulated other comprehensive INCoME (HOSS) -, (1,342) (3,017) {25,568)
Treasury stock, at cost:
2006 — 1,020 ShATES «+e-rorrrrersrmrrrre et N
2007 — 1,445 SHAMES < rrrrrrvrerrrmrm e (8) (68)
308,251 265,068 2,246,339
¥745,281 ¥695,886 $5,897,339
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CONSOLI

NEC Etectronics Corporation and Conselidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007

DATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2006 2007 2007
Sales and other income:
NEL SAIES - rerrrrerr e e ¥708,014 ¥645,963 ¥692,280 55'866,780
Gain on sales of propenty, plant and equipment and other ----.-... 2,443 1,917 2,548 21,593
Interest and dividend income ........................................................ 489 1'078 1,929 16'348
Gain on disposition of investments in securities - 112 1,365 6,436 54,542
711,058 650,323 703,193 5,959,263
Costs and expenses:
COSE Of SBIES +-r-vrrerrerermrrrermrrmrrereer e ir et rr e eaa e aaaaa e een 485,871 477,476 502,086 4,254,966
Research and geveIOpMEnt -« - «-wwrmessresrsimin e 107,942 120,874 131,751 1,116,534
Selling, general and administrative -, 81,025 83,302 87,000 737,288
RESIIUCIUNING CAIEES «+ e e erersrmms sttt —_ 1,683 4,192 35,525
thlganof‘ and Settlement expense ................................................ — 3'413 1,435 12‘161
Loss on sales or disposal of property,
plant and equipment and OthEr - 7,483 4132 9,229 78,212
INLEIESE < - ccmrerrarmrnrrierrimterrnuanrs st rrat e s rasa s s aantan s s s s eaeaeasnrns 749 874 698 5,916
Net foreign exchange |OSS ............................................................. 913 519 1,197 10,144
Loss on INvestments in SECUrities « e, 666 436 980 8,305
684,649 692,709 738,568 6,259,051
Income (loss) before INCOMe tax@s -« -oreeeeeersmiss e, 26,409 (42,386) (35,375} (299,788)
Provision for iNCOME taXes - rrrerrerrrrerrriririrrisia e 10,714 56,166 5,105 43,263
Income (loss) before minority interest,
equity in loss of affillated companies - 15,695 (98,552) (40,480) (343,051)
Minority interest In Income (loss) of consolidated subsidiaries - (336) (354) 552 4,678
Income (loss) before equity in loss of affiliated companies - 16,031 (98,198) (41,032) (347,729)
Equity In loss of affillated companles i — — (468) (3,966)
Net income (oSS) ««« et ¥ 16,031 ¥ (98,198) ¥ (41,500) $ (351,695)
Yen U.$. dollars
2005 2006 2007 2007
Basic net income (loss) per share -—------------ - e ¥ 129.81 ¥ (795.13) ¥(336.04) $ {2.85)
Diluted net income (loss) per share -, 120.30 (795.13) (336.04) {2.85)
Cash dividends PEESRAFE - oo 20.00 — —_ —_—
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

NEC Electronics Corporation and Consalidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Accumulated

Additional other  Treasury
Common paid-in Accumulated  comprehensive stock,
stock capital deficit income {loss} at cost Total
Balance at March 31, 2004 ¥85,955 ¥275,667 ¥ 27,268 ¥{17,147) ¥(4) ¥371,739
Contribution to capital -+ e-eeeieeee 558 558
Compensation expense for StOcK Oplions =« 468 468
Comprehensive income {loss):
NE’. income (rDSS) ......................................................................... 16‘031 16‘031
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments - 1,260 1,260
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax - 5,791 5,791
Unreatized gains {losses) on
marketable securities, Ne1 Of tax «- et 493 493
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax {5} {5)
Comgprehensive income (loss] - 23,570
Dividends <=, (2,470) (2,470)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost --- (2) 2
Balance at March 31, 2005 - ¥85,955 ¥276,693 ¥ 40,829 ¥ (9,608} ¥(6) ¥393,863
Contribution to capital 6,092 6,092
Transaction under coOmmMon control - oo {1,974) (1,974)
Compensation expense for stock options 203 203
Comprehensive income (10s8):
NEL INCOME {IGBS) =-r==rrerrrrmrm st (98.198) (98,198)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments 4,757 4,757
Minimum pension lability adjustment, net of tax - 1,243 1,243
Unrealized gains (losses) on
marketable securities, net of tax 2,304 2,304
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative
financial instruments, net of fax - (38) (38)
Comprehensive income (loss} {89.932)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost (1) (1)
Balance at March 31, 2006 ¥865,955 ¥281,014 ¥(57,369) ¥ (1,242) ¥(7) ¥308,251
Compensation expense for stock options 25 25
Comprehensive income (loss):
NEt INCOME ([05G) -r-vrsrmrer st (41’500) {41,500)
Other comprehensive income {loss):
Forelgn currency translation adjustments 2,789 2,789
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax {878) (B78)
Unrealized gains (losses) on
marketable securities, net of tax oo (3,336} {3,336)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax - 12 12
Comprehensive income ({loss) (42,913)
Adjustment to initialty apply SFAS No. 158, net of 1ax «-weoeeereinnens (262) {262)
Effect of change in fiscal year-end of certain subsidiary - (32) (32)
Purchase of treasl_"-y StOCk, AL COSLE rovrrirsrri s (1} (1)
Balance at March 31, 2007 - ¥85,955 ¥281 039 ¥(98,901) ¥ (3,017) ¥(8) ¥265,068
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Accumulated
Additional other  Treasury
Common paid-in Accumulated  comprehensive stock,
stock capital deficit income (loss) at cost Total
Balance at March 31, 2006 $728,432  $2,381.475 $(486,178) $(11,374) 5(60) $2,612.295
Compensation expense for stock options - 212 212
Comprehensive income {loss);
Nel income ('DSS) ......................................................................... {351'695) (351'695,
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments 23,636 23,636
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax - (7,441} (7,441)
Unrealized gains (losses) on
marketable securities, net of tax {28,271) {28,271}
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax o 102 102
Comprehensive iNCOmMe (I0SS) «+ s (363,669)
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of tax 12,220) {2,220)
Effect of change in fiscal year-end of certain subsidiary - {271) {271)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost (B) (8)
Balance at March 31, 2007 $728,432 52,381,687 5(838,144) $(25,568) 5(68) 52,246,339
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NEC Electronics Announces Dissolution of a Subsidlary

KAWASAKI, Japan, July 30, 2007 — NEC Electronics Corporation (TSE:6723) announced that its
wholly-owned subsidiary, NEC Semiconductors Ireland Ltd., will be dissolved in accordance with a
resolution passed today by the company's board of directors.

1. Reason for Dissolution
"~ NEC Semiconductors Ireland's primary business was the test and assembly of automotive
microcontrollers for the European market. In February 2006, in an effort to improve its worldwide
automotive microcontroller business, NEC Electronics decided to cease production at NEC
Semiconductors lreland. As preparations for the dissolution are now complete, NEC
~ Semiconductors Ireland is scheduled to be dissolved in September, and then enter liquidation.

2. About NEC Semiconductors Ireland

Location: Ballivor, County Meath, Ireland
Representative: Keniji Yamashiro, Managing Director
Primary business: Semiconductor test and assembly
Established: July 1974

Capitalization: 65.9 million Euro

Shareholder composition:  100% owned by NEC Electronics Corp.

3. Eftect on NEC Electronics’ FInancial Forecast
The effect of this dissoiution has been reflected in the consolidated financial forecasts for the fiscal
year ending March 31, 2008, announced today.

About NEC Electronics

NEC Electronics Corporation (TSE: 6723) specializes in semiconductor products encompassing advanced
technology solutions for the high-end computing and broadband networking markets, system solutions for
the mobile handset, PC peripherals, automotive and digital consumer markets, and platform solutions for a
wide range of customer applications. NEC Electronics Corporation has 25 subsidiaries worldwide including
NEC Electronics America, Inc. (www.am.necel.com) and NEC Electronics (Europe) GmbH
(www.ey.necel.com). For additional information about NEC Electronics worldwide, visit www.necel.com.
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NEC Electronics Reports Financial Results for the
First Quarter Ended June 30, 2007

KAWASAKI, Japan, July 30, 2007 — NEC Electronics Corporation (TSE: 6723) today
announced consolidated financial results for the first quarter ended June 30, 2007.
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. Summary of Consolidated Financial Results

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 Increase (Decrease)
% af % of
Billon Yen  Net Sales Bition Yen  Milion USD  Net Sales Billion Yen % Change
Net sales 1652 1000 1736 1,411 100.0 8.3 5.0
Sales from semiconductors 158.1 165.0 1,341 6.9 4.4
Operating loss (5.8) (3.5) 2.2) {18) (1.3) 35 —
Income (loss) before income taxes {4.8) (2.9) 0.4 4 0.3 53 -
Net loss {6.1) 3.7 (1.3) (1) {0.8) 4.8 -
Net loss per share of
common stock: Yan Yen usp Yen % Change
Basic (49.34) (10.74) (0.09} 38.60 -
Diluted {49.34) {10.74) (0.09) 38.60 -
Blilion Yan Billion Yern  Million USD Billion Yen % Change
Capltal expenditures 40.2 12.3 100 (27.8) (69.5)
Depreciation and amortization 18.9 17.7 144 (1.3) {6.6)
R&D expenses 31.0 29.3 239 (1.6) 5.3
Yen Yen
Exchange rate (USD) 115 119
Exchange rate (Euro) 142 160
March 31, 2007 June 30, 2007 Increase (Decrease) June 30, 2006
Bllion Yen Billlon Yen  Million USD Billion Yen % Change Bilion Yen
Total assets 695.9 680.0 5,609 (5.9) {0.9) 742.6
Shareholders' equity 265.1 288.7 2,184 3.6 1.4 299.2
Pamons Permsons Persons % Change Persons
Number of employees 23,982 24,189 207 0.9 24,118

Notes

1. U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥123=U.5.$1.
2. Al figures are rounded to the nearest 100 million yen.

3. The consolidated financial statements of NEC Electronics are prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States, or U.S. GAAP.

4. The figures for operating loss shown above represent net sales minus the cost of sales, research and development

expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses.

5. Net income {loss) per share of common stock is calculated based on Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

{("SFAS™) No.128, “Earnings per share".

6. The figures for shareholders’ equity are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, or U.S. GAAP.

7. The consolidated financial information Is unaudited.
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Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2007
Prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or U.S. GAAP
English translation from the original Japanese-language document

July 30, 2007

Company name : NEC Electronics Corporation

Stock exchanges on which the shares are listed  : Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section
Code number : 6723

URL : http://www.necel.com

Representative : Toshio Nakajima, President and CEO
Contact person : Taizo Endo, Associate General Manager

Corporate Communications Department
Tel. +81 (0)44-435-1664

(Amounts are rounded to the nearest million yen)

1. Consolidated results for the first quarter ended June 30, 2007

(1) Consolidated financial results {% change from corresponding period of the previous year)
Income (Loss)
Operating Before Net
Net Sales Loss Income Taxes Loss
Milllon Yen % Million Yen % Million Yen % Million Yen %
Three Months ended June 30, 2007 173,573 5.0 (2,227) - 437 (1,326} -
Three Months ended June 30, 2006 165,238 13.1 (5,764} - (4,822) (6,093) -
Year ended March 31, 2007 692,280 (28,557} (35,375) (41,500}
Net Loss Net Loss
Per Share: Per Share:
Basic Diluted
. Yen Yen
Three Months ended June 30, 2007 (10.74) (10.74)
Three Months ended June 30, 2006 (49.34) (49.34)
Year ended March 31, 2007 (336.04) (336.04)
Reference: Equity in loss of affiliated companies:
Quarter ended June 30, 2007: (283 million yen) Quarter ended June 30, 2006: -
Year ended March 31, 2007: (468 million yen)
Note 1: Net income (loss) per share of common stock is prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™} No. 128, “Earnings Per Share”.
Note 2: NEC Electronics' consolidated information is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. However, the figure for

operating loss shown above represents net sales minus the cost of sales, research and development
expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses.

(2) Consolidated financial position

Shareholders' Shareholders' Shareholders'
Total Assets Equity Equity Ratio | Equity Per Share
_ Million Yen Million Yen % Yen
June 30, 2007 689,951 268,654 389 2,175.37
June 30, 2006 742,602 299,197 40.3 2,422 67
March 31, 2007 695,886 265,068 38.1 2,146.32
Note: The figures for shareholders’ equity are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States, or U.S. GAAP.
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(3) Lonsoligated casn Tiows

Cash Flows From] Cash Flows From| Cash Flows From] Cash and Cash
Operating Investing Financing Equivalents at the
Activities Activities Activities End of the Period
Million Yen Milllon Yen Millkon Yen Million Yen
Three Months ended June 30, 2007 1,461 (7,333) {3,597) 177,349
Three Months ended June 30, 2006 7,799 {12,439) {1,251) 204,792
Year ended March 31, 2007 66,731 (78,497) (15,273) 185,372
2. Cash dividends
Interim Cash Annual Cash
Dividends Cash Dividends Dividends
Per Share Per Share Per Share
Yen Yen

Year ended March 31, 2007

Yen

Year ended March 31, 2008

3. Forecast of consolidated results for the year ending March 31, 2008

Forecasts for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008 remain unchanged from those announced

previously on May 14, 2007.

4. Other

(1) Changes in significant subsidiaries in the quarter ended June 30, 2007 {changes in specrfled
subsidiaries resulting in changes in scope of consolidation) : None

(2) Adoption of simplified accounting methods : None

(3) Changes in accounting policies : None

Note: Please refer to “4. Others™ under “ll. Business Results™ on page 10 for further information.

Cautionary Statement

The statements with respect to the financial outlook of NEC Electronics and its consolidated
subsidiaries are forward-looking statements involving risks and uncertainties. We caution you in
advance that actual results may differ materially from such forward-looking statements due to
changes in several important factors.
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Il. Business Results

(1) Analysis of Business Results

1. Overview of the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2007

In the first quarter ended June 30, 2007, the global economy showed signs of growth in every
region. However, signs of a downturn which emerged during the second half of the previous
fiscal year continued, leading to stagnant growth. In addition, there were other signs of slowing,
such as hints of inflation due to a lower unemployment rate and higher energy prices, and
adjustments in the U.S. housing market.

Within this global economy, the growth rate for the semiconductor market, which began to
taper off from the second half of 2006, continues to remain sluggish. In Japan, growth
continues at a relatively healthy pace, but the previously rapid growth rate in Asia is slowing,
and growth remains flat in Europe and the United States.

On a product basis, overall market growth remains low, despite growth in some markets
due to lower prices for flat-screen televisions and the introduction of new game consoles.

2, Summary of Consolidated Financial Results

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 Increase (Decrease)

Billion Yen Billion Yen Million USD | Billion Yen % Change
Net sales 165.2 173.6 1,411 8.3 5.0
Operating loss (5.8) (2.2) (18) 35 ---
Income (loss) before income taxes (4.8) 0.4 4 5.3 ---
Net loss (6.1) (1.3} (11) 48 ---

Yen Yen

Exchange rate (USD) 115 119 - ---

Exchange rate (Euro) 142 160

Consolidated net sales for the first quarter ended June 30, 2007 were 173.6 billion yen, up 8.3
billion yen, or 5.0% year on year. This was mainly due to a large increase in semiconductors
for game consoles, and also brisk sales of transistors for personal computers, which boosted
sales of Consumer Electronics and Discrete, Optical and Microwave products, and offset the
steep decline in Communications stemming from lower sales of LCD driver ICs and system
memory for mobile handsets.

Consolidated operating loss totaled 2.2 billion yen, an improvement of 3.5 billion yen year
on year as a result of higher semiconductor sales, coupled with lower R&D expenses and
selling, general, and administrative expenses.
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consolidated income berore Income 1axes totaied U.4 pillion yen, rewurning 1o the tiack arner

a 5.3 billion yen improvement year on year. This was due to an improvement in consolidated

operating loss as well as a transfer of the company’s photomask business and assets, which

led to 3.7 billion yen in non-operating income.

Consolidated net loss improved 4.8 billion yen year on year, to 1.3 billion yen.

3. Breakdown of Net Sales by Market Application

Three Months Ended| Three Months Ended

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007 Increase {Decrease)

Billion Yen Billlon Yen Million USD Blllion Yen % Change

Communications 285 20.7 168 (7.8) (27.5)

Computing and peripherals 303 295 240 (0.7) (2.4)
Consumer electronics 23.4 33.0 269 9.6 41.0
Automotive and industrial 26.3 27.4 223 1.1 42
Multi-market i1Cs 209 226 183 1.7 8.2
Discrete, optical, and microwave devices 28.7 3z 258 3.0 10.6
Semiconductor total 158.1 165.0 1,341 69 4.4
Other 7.1 86 70 1.4 19.9
Total 165.2 173.6 1.411 8.3 5.0

Communications

Products

Net sales

Semiconductors for broadband networking equipment including routers and
mobile-phone base stations; semiconductors for mobile handsets.

20.7 billion yen (Down 7.8 billion yen, 27.5% year on year)

Sales of semiconductors for mobile phones decreased year on year. This was due
to inventory adjustments by major customers, which impacted NEC Electronics’
sales of driver ICs for thin film transistor liquid crystal displays (TFT-LCDs}, as well
as a decline in sales of system memory for mobile phones.

Computing and Peripherals

Products

Net sales

Semiconductors for servers, workstations, personal computers, and PC
peripherals.

29.5 billion yen (Down 0.7 billion yen, 2.4% year on year)

Although sales of LCD driver ICs for LCD televisions and PC monitors saw an
increase in demand year on year, a decline in sales of semiconductors for printers
resufted in a slight net decrease.
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vonsumer elecironics

Products  Semiconductors for digital AV equipment and game consoles.
Net sales  33.0 billion yen (Up 9.6 billion yen, 41.0% year on year)

Sales of semiconductors for digital cameras decreased year on year, but sales of
semiconductors for game consoles grew significantly, leading to significant overall
gains.

Automotive and Industrial

Products  Semiconductors used in automobiles and industrial systems, including factory
automation equipment.

Net sales  27.4 billion yen (Up 1.1 billion yen, 4.2% year on year)

Sales of automotive semiconductors grew due to the increasing use of electronics
and semiconductors in automobiles.

Multi-market ICs

Products  General purpose microcontrollers, gate arrays and multi-purpose SRAM.
Net sales  22.6 billion yen (Up 1.7 billion yen, 8.2% year on year)

Sales of general purpose microcontrollers increased year on year due to
expansion of the company’s lineup of All Flash™ microcontrollers.

Discrete, Optical and Microwave Devices

Products  Discrete devices such as diodes and transistors; optical semiconductors for
optical communications equipment and DVD devices; and microwave
semiconductors for mobile handsets and other applications.

Net sales  31.7 billion yen (Up 3.0 billion yen, 10.6% year on year)

Sales of discrete semiconductors increased in line with healthy sales of personal
computing products, and sales of compound semiconductors improved year on
year.

Other

Products  Non-semiconductor products such as color LCDs, sold on a resale basis by NEC
Electronics’ sales subsidiaries.

Net sales 8.6 billion yen (Up 1.4 billion yen, 19.9% year on year)
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Hesale of non-semiconductor products Is not part of NEC Eklectronics core

business.

4. Geographical Segment Analysis

Three Months Ended | Three Months Ended Increase
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 (Decrease)
Billion Yen | Billion Yen Million USD Blilon Yen % Change
Japan 86.0 93.2 758 7.2 8.4
United States of America 18.8 15.2 123 (3.6) (19.0)
Europe 202 227 184 25 121
Asla 40.3 425 346 23 56
Total 165.2 173.6 1,411 8.3 5.0

Japan

Net sales 93.2 billion yen {Up 7.2 billion yen, 8.4% year on year)
Sales of LCD driver ICs for mobile handsets and semiconductors for printers
decreased, but sales of game console_ chips grew significantly.

United States of America

Net sales 15.2 billion yen (Down 3.6 billion yen, 19.0% year on year)
Sales of system memory for mobile handsets and semiconductors for game
consoles decreased.

Europe
Net sales 22.7 billion yen (Up 2.5 billion yen, 12.1% year on year)
Sales of automotive semiconductors increased.

Asia

Net sales 42.5 billion yen (Up 2.3 billion yen, 5.6% year on year)
Sales of LCD driver ICs for LCD televisions and PC monitors, as well as discrete
devices increased.
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(2) Financial Condition

1. Total Assets and Shareholders’ Equity

Increase
March 31, 2007 June 30, 2007 (Decrease)

Blllion Yen Billion Yen Million USD Billion Yen
Totat assets 695.9 690.0 5,609 5.9
Shareholders’ equity 265.1 268.7 2,184 3.6
Equity ratio 38.1% 38.9% 0.8%
Shareholders’ equity per share 2,146 yen | 2,175 yen 17.69 USD 29 yen
Interest-bearing debt 136.0 133.7 1,087 {2.3)

Tota! assets at June 30, 2007 totaled 690.0 billion yen, a 5.9 billion yen decrease from March
31, 2007. This was mainly due to payments for materials purchased in the previous guarter,

which led to an 8.0 billion yen decrease in cash and cash equivalents.
Compared to March 31, 2007, shareholders’ equity was 3.6 billion yen higher at 268.7
billion yen. This was the result of recording 3.5 billion yen in foreign currency translation

adjustments, which offset consolidated net loss in the amount of 1.3 billion yen.

Shareholders’ equity ratio improved by 0.8 points from March 31, 2007 as a result of the

increase in shareholders’ equity.

Interest-bearing debt totaled 133.7 billion yen, decreasing 2.3 billion yen from March 31,

2007 mainly due to the repayment of debt.

2. Cash Flows

Three Months
Ended Three Months Ended Increase
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 (Decrease)
Billion Yen Billian Yen Million USD Billion Yen
Net cash provided by operating activities 7.8 1.5 12 (6.3)
Net cash used in investing activities (12.4) {7.3) (60) 5.1
Free cash flows (4.6) {5.9) (48) (1.2
Net cash used in financing activities (1.3) (3.6) (29) (2.3)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (0.1) 1.4 12 1.6
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6.0) (8.0) (65) (2.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 21141 185.4 1,507 (25.7)
Cash and cash equivatents at end of period 204.8 177.3 1,442 (27.4)

Despite posting consolidated net loss, and a decrease in accounts payable, depreciation and

amortization in the amount of 17.7 billion yen led to net cash provided by operating activities in

the amount of 1.5 billion yen for the first quarter ended June 30, 2007.

Although the transfer of the photomask business and assets brought income, payments for

purchases of property, plant, and equipment totaled 14.4 billion yen, bringing the total net

cash used in investing activities to 7.3 billion yen.

The foregoing resulted in negative free cash flows of 5.9 billion yen.
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Financing activities used net cash In the amount Of 3.6 DRION Yyen, primarily Tor e
repayment of debt.

As a result of the above, and taking into consideration the effect of currency fluctuations,
cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2007 was 177.3 billion yen, an 8.0 billion yen decrease
from March 31, 2007.

(3) Consolidated Forecasts for the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2008
Forecasts for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008 remain unchanged from those announced
previously on May 14, 2007.

Operating Loss Before Net Loss
Net Sales Income (Loss) Income Taxes Net Loss Per Share
Millon Yen % | Million Yen % | Million Yen % | Milian Yen % Yen
Six months ending
Septernber 30. 2007 335,000 (23 {50000 — | (12,000} - | (15000) - (121.46)
Year ending March 31, 2008 690,000 {0.3) 0 — | poo00p | (15000 - {121.46)

(4) Others

1. Changes in significant subsidiaries in the quarter ended June 30, 2007 (changes in
specified subsidiaries resulting in changes in scope of consolidation)

None.

2, Adoption of simplified accounting methods
None.

3. Changes in accounting policies
None.
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lll. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Increase Year Ended
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 (Decrease) March 31, 2007

% of Nat % of Nat % of Net

Milllon Yen Sales Million Yen Milllon USD Sales Million Yen Million Yen Sales

Net sales 165,238 100.0 173,573 1,411 100.0 8,335 692,280 100.0

Cost of sales 118,931 72.0 | 125,927 1,024 725 6,996 502,086 725

:f:::s':'; and development 30978 187 | 20344 238 169 | (1,634 || 131751 190

S:ﬂ:ln?étgr:t?fem;ﬁ::ses 21,003 128 20520 167 119 (564) |{ 87.000 126

Operating loss (5,764) (3.5) (2,227) (18) (1.3) 3,537 (28,557) (4.1)

Non-operating income 4,747 29 3,667 30 2.1 (1,080) 10,913 1.6
Interest and dividend income 494 495 4 1 1,929
Other 4,253 3,172 26 (1,081) 8,984

Non-operating expense 3,805 23 1,003 8 05 (2,802) 17,731 26
Interest expense 212 228 2 16 698
Other 3,593 \ 775 8 (2,818) 17,033

Income {loss) before income taxes (4,822) 2.9) 437 4 03 5,259 (35,375) (5.1)

Provision for income taxes 1,238 0.8 1,579 13 09 341 5,105 0.7

of consoltea subsidaies @ 00 ) M EN] @y sz o1

Equity in loss of afflliated companies - - (283) (3) (0.1} (283) (468) (0.1)

Net loss (6,093) (3.7 (1,326) (11 (0.8) 4767 || (41,5000 (6.0

Notes ,

1. The consolidated financial statements of NEC Electronics are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, or U.S. GAAP.

2. The figures for operating loss shown above represent net sales minus the cost of sales, research and developmsnt
expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses.
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Condensed Consolidatea Baiance snheets

, Increase June 30,
March 31, 2007 June 30, 2007 (Decrease) 2006
Million Yer§  Milion Yen  Milion USDS Million Yeny Million Yery
Current assets 381,614 380,345 3,002 (1,269) 409,509
Cash and cash equivalents 185,372 177,349 1,442 (8.023) 204,792
Notes and accounts recefvable, trade 99,543 104,167 847 4,624 106,519
inventories 82,573 83,410 878 837 76,148
Other current assets 14,126 15,419 125 1,293 22,049
Long-term assets 3142721 309,606 2,517 (4,666) 333,093
Investments 7,154 8,026 65 872 6,825
Propenrty, plant and equipment 292,823 287,929 2,341 {(4,894) 309,530
Other assets 14,295 13,651 11 (544) 13,738
Total assets 695,886! 689,951 5,609 {5,935} 742,602
Current liabilities 222,960[ 214,039 1,740 (8,921) 222,022
Short-term borrowings and current portion of 20,603 18,005 154 (1,598) 13,982
long-term debt
Notes and accounts payable, trade 132,467 127,303 1,035 (5,164) 137,519
Other current liabllities 69,890 67,731 551 (2,159) 70,521
Long-term liabilities 203,023 202,514 1,646 (509) 217,243
Long-term debt 115,427 114,739 933 (688) 132,617
Accrued pension and severance costs 71,535 70,424 572 (1,111) 70,618
Other liabllities 16,061 17,351 141 1,290] 14,008
Minority shareholders’ equity in consolidated subsidiaries 4.835} 4,744 38 (91) 4,140
Shareholders’ equity 265,068] 268,654 2,184 3,586 299,197
Common Stock 85,955 85,955 699 - 85,955
Additional paid-in capital 281,039 281,048 2,285 9 281,014
Accumutated deficit (98,901)| (100,227} {815) (1,326) (63,494)
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) (3,017) 1,887 15 4,904 (4,271)
Treasury stock, at cost (8) (9 s n Y
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 695,886 689,951 5,609 (5,935) 742,602
Interest-bearing debt 136,030 133,744 1,087 {2.286) 146,599
Equity ratio 38.1% 30.9% 0.8% 40.3
Debt / equity ratio 0.51 times] 0.50 times -0.01 times| 0.49
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss}:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 10,502 14,039 114 3,537] 7.050
Minimum pension flabillty adjustment — —— - -] {14,624)
Pension liability adjustment (15,937 (15,230) {124} 707 -
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities 2,418 3,078 25 660| 3,299
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments - - — — 4
NEC Electronics’ Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2007 12



Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Change in Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Three Months Ended other Treasury
June 30, 2006 Common | Additional paid-in} Accumulated |comprehensive| stock,
stock capital deficit income {loss) at cost Total
Tlhon llion o Milion llion
Yen Yen Yon Yen Yen Yen
Balance at March 31, 2006 85,955 261,014 (57,369) (1,342) {7) 308,251
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income {joss) (6,093} (6,083)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {663) {663)
Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of tax 173 173
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable
securities, net of tax (2.455) {2,455)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative 18 16
financial instruments, net of tax
Comprehensive income (lass) {9.022)
Etfect of change in fiscal year-end of
cerain subsidiary 32) (%2)
Balance at June 30, 2006 85,955 281,014 (63,494) {4,271) {7) 209,197
Accumutated
Three Months Ended other Treasury
June 30, 2007 Common | Additiona! paid-in] Accumulated |comprehensivel  stock,
stock capital deficit income {loss) at cost Total
"Wilion Wilhony Wilion  Milliory Willion Williarg fion
Yen USD Yen  USDI Yen USD Yen USOH Yen USD Yen us|
Balance at March 31,2007 85955 699 281,039 2,285| (98,901) (BO4)| (3.017) {25)| (8) -~ 265,068 2,15
Compensation expense for stock options 9 =) 9 -
Comprehensive income (Joss)
Net income (loss) (1,326) (11) (1326) {11
QOther comprehensive income (loss)
Fareign currency transiation adjustments 3,537 29 3,537
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax 707 & 707
Unrea.lfzed gains (losses) on marketable 860 5 660 q
securities, net of tax
Comprehensive income (loss} 3,578 29
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost (1) -] N -]
|Balance at June 30, 2007 85,955 6990 261,048 2,285 (100,227 (815) 1.887 15| (9 ---| 268,654 2,184
Accumulated
Year Ended other Treasury
March 31, 2007 Common | Additional paid-in| Accumulated Jcomprehensive| stock,
stock capital deficit income (less) at cost Total
— Million TRlkon TAlon Wilon Miion Willion
Yon Yon Yon Yen Yon Yan
Balance at March 31, 2006 85,955 281,014 {57,369) (1,342} {7) 308,251
Compensation expense for stock options 25 25
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income (less) {41,500) {41,500)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 2,789 2,789
Minimum pension liability adjustment,
nat of tax (878) (878)
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable
securities, net of tax (3.336) {3,338)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative 12 12
financial instruments, net of tax
Comprehensive income (loss) (42,913}
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No.158,
net of tax (262) (262)
Effect of change in fiscal year-end of
certain subsidiary 32) ©2)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost {1} (1}
Balance at March 31,2007 85,855 281,039 {98,901) (3,017) (8) 265,068
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Three Menths Year Ended
Ended June 30, Three Months Increase March 31,
2006 Ended June 30, 2007 | (Decrease) 2007
Milion Yen{  Million Yan  Million USDS Million Yen Millian Yery
I. Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss {6,093) {1.326) {11) 4,767 {41,500)
Adjusiments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by operating acthvities
Depreciation and amortization 18,947, 17,692 144 (1,255) 82,960
{Increase) decrease In notes and accounts receivable 7,336 (1,337) (11) (8,673} 15,985
({tncrease) decrease in inventorles (3,764) 73 1 3,837 {9,333)
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 1,934 (6,859) (56) (8,793) 16,171
Other, net (10,561) (6,782) (55) 3,779 2,448
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,799 1,461 12 (6,338) €6,71
Il. Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 16,220 782 6 (15,438) 39,803
Additions fo property, plant and equipment (28,523)| (14,3086) (117) 14,117 (121,126)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securitles ¢ - - — o 3,660
Increase in loans receivable 227 1 e (226) 511
Other, net {363} 6.290 51 6,653 (1,345)
Net cash used in Investing activities (12,439) (7,333) (60) 5,108 {78.497)
Free cash flows {1+ 1) (4,640) (5.872) (48) {1,232) {11,766)
Il. Cash flows from flnancing activities
Net repayments of borrowings (1,251) (2,918) {24) {1,667) (13,074)
Other, net — (679) {5) (679) (2,189}
Net cash used In financing activities {1.251) {3,597) (29) (2,346) (15,273)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {133} 1,446 12 1,579 1,595
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {6,024} (8,023} (65) (1,999) (25,444)
Effect of change In fiscal year-end of certain subsidiary (244) - - 244 (244)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 211,060 185,372 1,507 (25.688) 211,060,
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 204,792 177,349 1,442 {27.443) 185,372
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Segment Information

Breakdown of Net Sales by Market Application

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 Increase (Decrease) March 31, 2007
Milion Yen % Total | Millon Yen Milion USD % Total | Miion Yen Chang’: Milion Yen % Total
Communications 28,533 173 | 20691 168 1.9 (7.842) (27.5) 99,641 144
Computing and peripherals 30,255 18.3 20,534 240 17.0 (721) (2.4) 123,714 17.9
Consumer electronics 23,434 14.2 33,048 269 19.0 9,614 41.0 120,757 174
Automotive and industrial 26,315 158 27,428 223 15.8 1,113 4.2 106,097 15.3
Multi-market ICs 20,876 126 22,579 183 13.0 1,703 8.2 88,961 129
Discrete, optical, and microwave devices | 28,664 17.4 31,710 258 18.4 3,046 10.6 120,563 174
Semiconductor total 158,077 95.7 | 164,990 1,341 985.1 6,913 4.4 659,733 85.3
Other 7,161 43 8,583 70 49 1,422 19.9 32,547 4.7
Total 165,238 100.0 | 173,673 1,411 100.0 8,335 5.0 652,280 100.0

(Reference) Breakdown of Net Sales by Platform

In addition to reporting sales by market application, NEC Electronics also reports sales by platform.

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2006 Juneg 30, 2007 Increase (Decrease) March 31, 2007

MifionYen % Total | Milion Yen Milion USD % Total | Million Yen cmm: Million Yen % Total
SoC platform 58,963 357 63,620 517 36.7 4,667 79 259,249 ars
MCU platform 40,799 247 44 354 361 25.6 3,555 87 168,421 24.3
Discrete and IC 58,315 353 57,006 463 328 {1,308) (2.2 232,063 335

Semiconductor total 158,077 95.7 | 164,990 1,341 95.1 6,913 4.4 659,733 95.3 .

Cther 7.161 43 8,583 70 4.9 1,422 19.9 32,547 47
Total 165,238 100.0 173,573 1.411 100.0 8,335 5.0 692,280 100.0

Nate: System-on-Chip (SoC) Platform: application specific integrated circuits {ASIC), application specific standard products (ASSP),

memory

Microcomputer (MCU) Platform: microcontrollers, car audio controllers

Discrete and IC: display drivers, analog ICs, discrete, optical and microwave devices

NEC Electronics’ Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2007
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Segment Information

Breakdown of Net Sales by Region

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Increase Year Ended
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 {Decrease) March 31, 2007
Milion Yen % of Total | Million Yen MilionUSD % ofTotal | % Change Million Yen % of Total
Japan 85,998 521 93,193 758 53.7 84 377,298 54.5
United States of America| 18,750 11.3 15,188 123 8.7 {19.0) 67,458 9.8
Europe 20,230 12.2 22,682 184 13.1 121 88,908 12.8
Asia 40,260 24.4 42510 346 24.5 5.6 158,616 22.9
Total 165,238 100.0 | 173,573 1,411 100.0 5.0 692,280 100.0
Breakdown of Profit / Loss by Reglon
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Increase Year Ended
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 (Decrease) March 31, 2007
Million Yen % of Total | Million Yen Million USD % of Total |  Million Yen Millon Yen % of Total
Japan (9,510) - {4,466) (36} -— 5,044 (38,877) -
United States of America 997 (235) {2) (1.232) (1,006) -
Europe as1 --- 198 2 e {183) 100 -
Asia 2,368 - 2,276 18 - (92) 11,226 -
Total (5,764) — | (2227 {18) 3,537 {28,557) -
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Capital Expenditures and R&D Expenses

Three Months
Ended Three Months Ended Increase Year Ended
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 {Decrease) March 31, 2007
Mlbor Yen Mition Yan MiBon USD| Million Yen Mitlion Yen|
Capital expenditures 40,190 12,268 100 (27.922) 105,865
Depreciation and amortization 16,947 17,692 144 {1,255) 82,960
R&D expenses 30,978 29,344 239 {1,634) 131,751

Note: Capital expenditures refer to
(excluding software).

the cost of additions to property, plant and equipment
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Forward-Looking Statements

The statements in this press release with respect to the plans, strategies and financial outlook of
NEC Electronics and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively “NEC Electronics”) are forward-
looking statements involving risks and uncertainties. We caution you in advance that actua! results
may differ materially from such forward-looking statements due to several important factors
including, but not limited to, genera! economic conditions in our markets, which are primarity Japan,
North America, Asia, and Europe; demand for, and competitive pricing pressure on, products and
services in the marketplace; ability to continue to win acceptance of products and services in these
highly competitive markets; and fluctuations in currency exchange rates, particularly between the
yen and the U.S. dollar. Among other factors, downturn of the world economy; deteriorating
financial conditions in world markets, or deterioration in domestic and overseas stock markets, may
cause actual results to differ from the projected results forecast.

About NEC Electronics

NEC Electronics Corporation (TSE: 6723) specializes in semiconductor products encompassing
advanced technology solutions for the high-end computing and broadband networking markets,
system solutions for the mobile handsets, PC peripherals, automotive and digital consumer
markets, and multi-market solutions for a wide range of customer applications. NEC Electronics
Corporation has 25 subsidiaries worldwide including NEC Electronics America, Inc.
(www.am.necel.com) and NEC Electronics {(Europe) GmbH (www.eu.necel.com). For additional
information about NEC Electronics worldwide, visit www.necel.com.

###

END
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